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ON THE ROAD TO  
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I thought the very earth reeled under me.  
doubt–convIctIon–doubt agaIn–exultatIon– 
hope, amazement, belIef, unbelIef–every emotIon  
ImagInable swept In wIld processIon through  
my heart and braIn, and I could not speak a word.  
after a moment or two of thIs mental fury,  
I shook myself to rIghts, and saId: 

“say It agaIn!” ……

“It’s a blInd lead, for a mIllIon!–hangIng wall–
foot wall–clay casIngs–everythIng complete!”  
he swung hIs hat and gave three cheers, and I cast 
doubt to the wInds and chImed In wIth a wIll. 
 
Mark Twain, “Roughing It”  1872
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Highlights 

A definition drill program at Juanicipio continues to return 
extraordinary grades and widths [for example: Hole KD 
returned 3,455 grams (100.8 ounces) per tonne silver and 
4.01 grams per tonne gold over 7.0 metres (22.9 feet)]. As 
the project moves towards  true joint venture status, we con-
tinue to work closely with Industrias Peñoles as they delin-
eate and assess the Valdecañas Vein.  Preliminary resource 
figures are expected during the second half of 2007.

New lead, zinc and silver mineralization has been intersected 
at Cinco de Mayo where drilling returned: 6.11 metres of 
5.7% zinc, 1.4% lead and 22.5 grams per tonne silver and 
1.88 metres of 7.9% zinc, 4.3% lead and 190 grams per tonne 
silver. The results of this drill program and early systematic 
regional exploration work clearly show that Cinco de Mayo 
has many geological and mineralogical characteristics in 
common with the largest Carbonate Replacement Deposits 
(CRDs) in Mexico. Management contends that intersecting 
significant mineralization in initial blind drilling confirms 
that we are applying the right techniques in the right geo-
logical setting, and that a carbonate replacement system of 
significant strength and size may be present. 

The 2007 program at Batopilas will include drilling the on-
strike and down dip extension of the Don Juan Vein (Ar-
royo de Las Minas) structure first intersected in last year’s 
drill program. This hole reported 1.7 metres (5.6 feet) of 
2,358 grams per tonne silver (75.8 ounces per tonne).  The 
program will also include drilling on the Pastrana Vein 
which remains open down dip and along strike.  The un-
derground workings at Pastrana were accessed this past fall 
and valuable information was obtained to help guide the 
drill program. 

Drilling in 2006 at Lagartos NW intersected the same stratigra-
phy, alteration, anomalous silver and geochemical features 
similar to those encountered on the Juanicipio project, 
located 35 kilometres to the SE. New claims have been 
added at both Lagartos NW and SE thus solidifying our 
 

PHOTO: (Opposite page) R. Michael Jones, Director; Frank Hallam, 

CFO; Peter Megaw, Director; and Gabriel Arredondo Gomez, Senior 

Geologist.

 
 
 

 position as the largest landowner in the immediate vicinity 
of the Fresnillo and Zacatecas Silver Districts. This reflects 

 management’s strong belief that our exploration approach 
in the Fresnillo Silver Trend will lead to further discoveries.  
Exploration has also defined a number of prominent drill 
targets in and around the Zacatecas district at Lagartos SE.

Airborne electromagnetic and magnetic surveys totalling 5,800 
line kilometres were flown over 6 MAG held projects 
(Guigui, Sierra Ramirez, Batopilas, Juanicipio, Lagartos 
and Cinco de Mayo) in 2006 and early 2007.  Preliminary 
review of the results reveals a number of high priority drill 
targets and the surveys have collectively raised the level 
of geotechnical understanding considerably. This work will 
provide solid guidance for the exploration programs going 
forward.

We successfully completed an equity financing in North 
America for a net CDN$18.82 M.  This will provide us the 
necessary working capital to fund our share of the Juani-
cipio Joint Venture, to carry out exploration programs on 
our other assets, and for general and administrative costs.

In a move to strengthen our management team, MAG an-
nounced in early 2007, the addition of Jonathan Rubenstein, 
a successful lawyer and widely respected mining executive 
as a new board member.  
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PHOTO: (Opposite page) Drillers working on Hole KD at Valdecañas

MAG Silver Corp’s fourth year was yet another marked by 
continued growth and momentum stemming from suc-
cessfully taking novel geological concepts and applying 
sound exploration techniques to district scale projects. This 
approach led to the discovery of new silver and gold rich 
mineralization at Juanicipio, within one of the oldest and 
most significant Silver Districts in the world.  This same 
approach on MAG held properties has resulted in new 
mineral discoveries at Batopilas and Cinco de Mayo. This 
exploration success allowed us to raise significant capital 
in early 2007 to further develop and advance our mineral 
discoveries. The stage is now set for the company to transi-
tion from a successful explorer to one with a measurable 
resource.  

MAG’s exploration team first identified the Juanicipio Property 
in the late 1990’s. Our drill campaign from 2003 to 2005 
discovered the Juanicipio Vein and exposed the potential 
for the discovery of other new vein mineralization in the 
area.  This success quickly attracted the keen attention of 
Industrias Peñoles S.A. de C.V., the world’s largest silver 
producer, to acquire an option from MAG Silver to earn an 
interest in the Juanicipio property. Drilling by Peñoles in 
late December 2005 subsequently discovered the Valdeca-
ñas Vein. To date this exciting new gold and silver rich vein 
has exhibited extraordinary widths and grade. The success-
ful drilling continued to return spectacular results through 
2006 and into early 2007. Backed by the substantial re-
sources and expertise of our joint venture partner Peñoles, 
the project has quickly moved from discovery to a drill 
intensive delineation program. We expect that by mid year 
we will also see the formation of a working joint venture 
as Peñoles completes the conditions of the joint venture 
agreement. In addition, by the end of 2007 we expect to be 
in a position to announce a preliminary tonnes and grade 
resource at Valdecañas.

It is important to note that working with Peñoles over the 
past two years has been both rewarding and productive. 
They have been extremely cooperative and accommo-
dating and have involved us in all aspects of the work  
program.  Management is looking forward to a continued 
professional working relationship with Peñoles as we work 
towards a resource base at Juanicipio together.

MAG Silver also holds extensive 100% owned property in-
terests in and around the Zacatecas and Fresnillo mining 
districts within the regional Fresnillo Silver Trend. This 
positions us as one of the largest landholders in a region 
that has produced over 2.0 billion ounces of silver.  Drill-
ing in 2006 at Lagartos NW, located 35 kilometres to the 
NW of the Fresnillo Mine District, encountered the same 
stratigraphy and alteration features that characterize the 
Juanicipio-Fresnillo areas. Significant indications of silver 
mineralization were encountered in one hole and we will be 
combining these results with new structural interpretations 
during our proposed 2007 follow-up drill campaign. New 
claims have been added at both Lagartos NW and SE thus 
solidifying our land position. This reflects management’s 
strong belief that our exploration approach in the Fresnillo 
Silver Trend will lead to further discoveries.  Exploration 
has already defined a number of promising drill targets in 
and around the Zacatecas district at Lagartos SE.  

At our 100% owned Batopilas Silver Property, our exploration 
program successfully advanced from concept to discovery 
stage with the intersection of a new high grade silver vein 
structure at Don Juan in late 2005. The exploration program 
continued into 2006 and drill tested a variety of geological, 
geophysical and geochemical targets with promising results. 
This work has led to a new understanding of the nature 
and occurrence of the native silver mineralization on the 
property and the application of this important knowledge 

Letter to Shareholders

ON THE ROAD TO RESOURCE MEASUREMENT
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directed our summer and fall programs. We have new and 
well defined targets that are being tested by a drill program 
initiated in February of 2007. In addition we will be drilling 
for the on-strike and down-dip extensions of the Don Juan 
and Pastrana vein systems. An airborne geophysical survey 
has been completed and when integrated with work to date 
will provide another tool for district wide exploration.

Within our portfolio of properties are a number of Carbonate 
Replacement Deposit style projects.  The most prominent is 
Cinco de Mayo in Northern Chihuahua State. This deposit 
type accounts for roughly 4 billion ounces (40%) of the 
10.0 billion total silver ounces ever produced in Mexico. 
Drilling at Cinco de Mayo in late 2006 on blind (buried) 
geophysical and geochemical targets successfully encoun-
tered the presence of a very extensive zone of zinc, lead 
and silver mineralization hosted in limestone.  Once again 
we advanced a project from a geological concept to the 
discovery of significant mineralization requiring immedi-
ate follow up work. A recently completed property wide 
airborne geophysical survey will provide us with a valuable 
tool in guiding the next drill campaign.

In 2006 we added district coverage airborne electromagnetic 
and magnetic (AEM) surveys to our exploration tool box.  
To that end, in addition to surveys at Batopilas and Cinco 
de Mayo, we have conducted surveys at Guigui, Sierra 
Ramirez, Lagartos and Juanicipio. This advanced tech-
nique will provide valuable information, direct drill targets 
and guidance for the next round of exploration on these 
properties. 

Corporately, we continue to ensure that we maximize the 
company’s exposure to the market place and protect the 
assets we are developing at Juanicipio and elsewhere. We 
are moving to augment our board to reflect our growth. The 

appointment of Dr. Peter Megaw, co-founder of MAG and 
project generator, in early 2006 was the first step. MAG 
announced in early 2007 the addition of a new board mem-
ber, Jonathan Rubenstein, a successful lawyer and widely 
respected mining executive who we believe can contribute 
to and maximize the value of our growing resource and 
asset base.   

We were successful in completing an equity financing in North 
America for a net CDN$18.82M in early 2007.  This will 
provide us with the necessary working capital to fund our 
share of the Juanicipio Joint Venture, to carry out explo-
ration programs on our other assets, and for general and 
administrative costs.

As we move into 2007 we invite you, the shareholders, to 
continue with us for what we expect to be an exceptional 
year for MAG.  The Valdecañas Vein and the Fresnillo 
Silver Trend will continue to be our main focus as will 
our efforts to build on the successful mineral discoveries 
at Cinco de Mayo and Batopilas. All of this would not be 
possible were it not for the support of our shareholders and 
for that we thank you and invite you to join us “On the 
road to resource measurement”.

 Dan MacInnis
 President and Chief Executive Officer 
 February 19, 2007

PHOTO: (Opposite page) Holes ID & KD at Valdecañas
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FORWARD STATEMENT 
Corporate Objectives for 2007

•  ParTiciPaTe as a full contributing partner in the Juanicipio Joint Venture with Industrias Peñoles as we 
delineate and assess the Valdecañas Vein.

•  PrOduce a report on a measurable resource at Juanicipio by year end.

•  cOnTinue to define and explore the new mineral discoveries at Batopilas and Cinco de Mayo.

•  FOcus on our large landholdings at Lagartos NW and SE in the Fresnillo Silver Trend and build on our 
expertise and success at Juanicipio in the region.

•  cOnTinue to search for new and exceptional exploration and development opportunities in Mexico.

•  sOlidiFy and strengthen our MAG Team as the company moves forward.

ñ

M E X I C O

project locations

PHOTO: (Opposite page) Looking to the future
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PHOTO: View from Juanicipio to the town of Fresnillo

MAG’s exploration team, headed by Dr. Peter Megaw of the 
consultant group Minera Cascabel / IMDEX, first identified 
the Juanicipio Property in the late 1990’s.  Prior to acquisi-
tion by MAG there were no silver, gold or base metal min-
eralization identified on the Juanicipio Property. It was the 
extensive advanced argillic alteration and silicification of 
the tertiary volcanic and volcaniclastic rocks, that implied 
mineralization at depth. Drilling by MAG Silver from 2003 
to 2005 on this working geological model, intersected new 
high grade silver and gold veins within one of the oldest and 
most significant Silver Districts in the world. This success 
quickly attracted the keen attention of Industrias Peñoles 
S.A. de C.V., the world’s largest silver producer, to acquire 
an option to earn an interest in the property. Drilling by 
Peñoles in late 2005 subsequently discovered the Valdeca-
ñas Vein less than 5 kilometres from the main production 
headframe of the world’s largest silver mine at Fresnillo. 

To date this exciting new gold and silver rich vein has exhibited 
extraordinary width and grade. The successful drilling of 
the discovery progressed through 2006 and into early 2007 
and continued to return spectacular results. The substantial 

resources and expertise of our joint venture partner Indus-
trias Peñoles, has quickly moved the project from discovery 
to a drill intensive delineation program.

Of the nearly 30,000 metres of drilling at Juanicipio to the 
end of February 2007 by Peñoles and MAG combined, 
almost 15,000 metres have been drilled by Peñoles on 
testing the Valdecañas Vein.  Peñoles has proposed to drill 
an additional 26 holes with 25,000 metres in 2007 almost 
entirely directed at establishing a resource picture for the 
Valdecañas Vein.

The option terms of the joint venture include the expenditures 
of US$5.0M by Peñoles over a 5 year period to earn a 56% 
undivided interest in the property.  To the end of February 
they had spent almost US$3.8M, had met all other commit-
ments and they are projected to earn their interest by mid 
2007. From that point onward MAG Silver at 44% and 
Peñoles at 56% will participate in all further work program 
expenditures on a pro rata basis.  The partnership has been a 
successful one and we look forward to this continuing as we 
work to unlock the true potential of the Juanicipio property.

JUANICIPIO JOINT VENTURE - The Valdecañas Vein 
Municipio Fresnillo Zacatecas, Mexico

It is the dream of every junior explorer to make a significant discovery.  For MAG that realization was accom-
plished with the discovery of the Valdecañas Vein on our Juanicipio Property in Zacatecas State, Mexico.   



PHOTO: Drilling at Hole ID (Feb 2007 AD). Cerro Proaño, original workings in background (1553 AD)

MAG Silver’s Juanicipio (almost 8,000 hectares) and Lagartos 
properties cover approximately 140,000 hectares in several 
large claim blocks along the “Fresnillo Trend” a regional 
structural corridor linking the famous Zacatecas, Fresnillo 
and Sombrerete-San Martin Silver Districts of Zacatecas, 
Mexico. Combined these three districts have produced over 
3.0 billion ounces of silver (representing 30% of Mexico’s 
historic silver production) and include Fresnillo, currently 
the world’s largest primary silver mine which produced 
33.9 million ounces of silver in 2005. 

 
Program results 2006

After the initial release of information in January of 2006 
confirming the discovery at Juanicipio, follow up work was 
curtailed until August. That time was necessary for a team 
of negotiators from MAG Silver and Industrias Peñoles to 
open talks with the local Ejido regarding the purchase of 
surface rights along the projection of the Valdecañas Vein.  
A deal was successfully concluded and US$1.4 million was 
paid by Peñoles for a portion of the Juanicipio property 
surface believed to cover that projection. This land is now 
an asset of the joint venture and will significantly reduce 
any future access issues.

Drilling actually started in August on a fence of 5 drill holes 
along a line located almost 2 kilometres to the west of the 
Valdecañas discovery, Hole 16. The target was the strike 
projection of the Valdecañas Vein. 

Four holes were completed, two of which were on Peñoles 
100% owned property. The other two holes were drilled 
on MAG’s Juanicipio project and results have yet to be 
released. At least one further hole is needed to complete 
this program. As proposed, this work will be restarted 
once drilling at Valdecañas has better defined the vein. All 
airborne electromagnetic and magnetic survey, to be flown 
in early 2007, will also help in targeting the Valdecañas 
structure to the west.

Peñoles began work on the Valdecañas discovery proper by ini-
tiating an eighteen hole, fifteen thousand metre definition 
drill program in October. Peñoles drilled 10,758 metres in 
2006 and proposed an additional 28,000 metres utilizing a 
minimum of 4 drills going into the 2007 program. The defi-
nition drill program is designed to delineate the Valdecañas 
Vein over a 1.2 kilometre strike length, along 100 metre 
sections and at 100 metre separation up and down dip. This 
program was ongoing at the time of this report.
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THE VALDECAÑAS VEIN DESCRIPTION

Valdecañas lies 2.5 kilometres southwest from the San Carlos 
Vein, which is Peñoles’ principal production vein and 2.5 
kilometres northwest from the El Saucito Vein, which is 
currently undergoing preproduction development with 
construction of a 600 metre shaft and a 2,200 metre decline. 
Geologically and mineralogically the Valdecañas Vein has 
affinities to the Peñoles’ Santo Niño Vein, at one time the 
principal production vein at Fresnillo.  The Santo Niño 
produced over 250 million ounces of silver from a four 
kilometre strike length. 

The drilling to date clearly demonstrates that Valdecañas is 
a low-sulphidation vein typical of the Fresnillo District. 
However; Valdecañas and Juanicipio Veins (discovered 
by MAG in 2003), contain significantly higher gold 
grades (3-4 grams gold per tonne) than the average veins 
(0.5 grams gold per tonne) in the principal production 
parts of the district. Mineralization observed in drill core 
consists of precious metal rich, banded or brecciated  
quartz-pyrargyrite-acanthite-polybasite-galena-sphalerite 
veins. The Valdecañas Vein has undergone multiple miner-
alizing events as evidenced by various stages of brecciation 
and quartz sealing, local rhythmic microcrystalline quartz-
pyrargyrite banding and open-space cox-comb textures and 
vuggy silica. The vein exhibits the characteristic metal zon-
ing of the principal veins at Fresnillo, observed as a change 
from silver and gold rich zones at the top to increased 
base metals in the deeper intersections. Notably, the gold 

rich mineralization cuts across the silver rich zones, which 
in turn cut earlier base-metal dominant stage indicating 
complex multi-stage mineralization combining stages seen 
separately in other parts of the district.  Overall, the pre-
cious metals rich zone is 350 metre high, which is typical of 
major producing veins in the district although it lies slightly 
lower in elevation than the comparable precious metal 
zones being mined elsewhere in the district. Within ten to 
twenty metres of the vein, the wall rocks are progressively 
pervasively silicified and cut by quartz veinlets carrying 
pyrite-sphalerite-galena sulphide minerals. Alteration in the 
volcanoclastic /sedimentary host rock farther away from the 
vein is characterized by weak pyritization, moderate clay 
alteration, and calcite veining.   

The table on page 12 represents a summary of the intersec-
tions at Valdecañas to the end of February. They clearly 
demonstrate that at this point in time, the intercepts in the 
Valdecañas Vein are above the average grade and width usu-
ally seen in Fresnillo. 

By mid to year end 2007, Peñoles is expected to have completed 
sufficient drilling to provide the basis for a tonnage and 
grade resource calculation. Work planned for 2007 will also 
include preliminary metallurgical studies; rock mechanics 
studies; mineralogical and fluid inclusion work; a 400 line 
kilometre airborne magnetic and electromagnetic survey 
and 3D modeling of the Valdecañas Vein.

PHOTO: Javier Garcia-Fons, Peñoles in discussion with Daniel MacInnis, President, MAG Silver
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MAG Projects in the Fresnillo Trend

Valdecañas Vein - Drill Plan
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Metres

vertical longitudinal section
Valdecañas Vein 

Hole # From To Width Silver Silver Gold Lead Zinc True Width

metres Grams/T Ounces/T Grams/T % % metres

JI-06-MA 429.6 431.05 1.45 56 1.80 0.56 0.02 0.02 1.20

Footwall vein 452.25 453.05 0.80 165 5.31 0.78 0.50 0.38

JI-06-MB 606.7 608.3 1.60 2,210 71.05 6.96 0.62 0.32 1.50

JI-06-MC 625.20 633.25 8.05 1,347 43.4 0.50 1.31 2.69 7.00

including 628.6 633.25 4.65 2,255 72.7 0.20 2.04 3.55

JI-05-16 680.9 687.25 6.35 1,798 57.8 2.91 3.43 5.51 5.50

including 682.1 685.08 2.95 2,007 90.3 3.27 5.94 9.14

JI-06-ME 684.65 692.35 7.70 1,893 60.8 4.46 2.16 4.68 7.00

including 684.65 689.00 4.35 2,725 87.6 7.54 1.80 3.91

Footwall vein 745.05 747.20 2.15 111 3.57 0.16 0.3 0.5

JI-06-MF 813.5 823.7 10.20 675 19.7 1.44 4.76 7.02 7.21

including 815.3 817.7 2.40 2,056 59.9 2.27 9.71 6.77

including 815.3 820.55 5.25 1,142 33.3 2.48 6.99 9.04

JI-06-KD 700.55 712.5 11.95 2,279 66.5 2.66 1.60 4.28 9.80

including 701.2 708.2 7.00 3,455 100.8 4.01 1.69 5.14

including 701.2 704.2 3.00 5,980 174.4 8.02 1.12 1.84
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Valdecañas Vein - Section “M”

Valdecañas Vein - Section “K”



The Batopilas veins are distinct from the other epithermal vein 
deposits of the region, which typically have a productive zone 
a few hundred metres high. The Batopilas silver veins were 
productive over a vertical interval of at least 700 metres and 
the bottom of the system has apparently never been reached. 

MAG Silver has generated the first modern detailed geological 
and structural map of the district and is combining it with a 
number of modern geophysical and geochemical exploration 
techniques to locate new ore shoots quickly and effectively. 

Program results 2006

MAG Silver completed Phase One of its Batopilas drill pro-
gram in April, 2006. A total of 12 holes were drilled totaling 
3,025 metres. The rig was demobilized for the 2006 sum-
mer rainy season and started the Phase Two drill program 
in mid February 2007. 

The primary objectives of this program were threefold: to test 
anomalies generated by a Natural Source Audio-frequency 
Magnetotellurics (“NSAMT”) geophysical survey; to 
identify new structures not previously recognized and to 
evaluate any mineralized structures identified. An additional 
benefit of this first program was to develop a geochemical 
database on the multi-element signature of classic Batopilas 
style mineralization. Two areas were selected for this first-
stage evaluation: west of Roncesvalles Fault Zone and south 
of the San Martin Mine; and the north end of the historic 
Pastrana Vein that hasn’t been worked since the 1860’s.

The first seven holes focused in the area of detailed NSAMT 
geophysics. Five of the holes tested a well defined NSAMT 
low resistivity zone and two holes targeted a NW trending 
structure hosting the San Martin Nuevo adit, a prospect 
containing native silver that was briefly worked in the early 
1970’s.

BATOPILAS 
Batopilas District, Municipio Batopilas Chihuahua, Mexico

The Batopilas (Don Fippi) project area covers approximately 4,800 hectares and is centred in the historic 
Batopilas Silver District. The Batopilas District is located deep within the famous Copper Canyon country of 
southwestern Chihuahua State. Batopilas produced an estimated 200-300 million ounces of silver between 
1632 and 1920 from ore shoots of very high grade crystalline native silver hosted in calcite veins. 

PHOTO: Batopilas property
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BATOPILAS SILVER DISTRICT

The second hole, BA05-02, intercepted 1.7 metres of 2,357 
grams per tonne Ag (75.8 opt) as well as a second 1.7 metre 
intercept further down the hole containing 132 grams per 
tonne Ag (4.2 opt). An undercut Hole BA06-05 encountered 
1.8 metres of 118 grams per tonne Ag (3.8 opt) forty metres 
below the high-grade intercept. Subsequently Hole BA06-
06, located 40 metres to the north-northwest encountered 
3.0 metres of 27 grams per tonne (0.9 ounces).  All three 
intercepts define the coherent north 070 west striking, 78º 
southwest dipping Don Juan vein that shows a distinct 
geochemical signature containing high silver along with 
anomalous arsenic, molybdenum and moderately anoma-
lous cobalt and nickel. 

The Don Juan vein has not been tested to the south-southeast 
and remains open along strike in both directions and at 
depth. It will be further evaluated during Phase Two drill-
ing which was initiated in late February 2007.

This work was successful in identifying a number of important 
exploration control vectors at Batopilas that included: a bet-
ter understanding of the lithological controls on the native 
silver mineralization; the structural history and structural 
ore host controls; the vein and structural geochemistry as 
well as the lateral and vertical metal zoning characteristics 
of the vein mineralization.

The net result of this work coupled with the results of the geo-
chemical soil and silt program helped identify a number of 
targets that are to be tested in the 2007 program.
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PHOTO: Collecting Samples at Lagartos

The Lagartos properties comprise two very large and separate 
claim groups lying northwest and southeast of Fresnillo. 
Exploration work here is still in the early stage, but initial 
results are promising. Both properties lay along the Fres-
nillo Silver Trend a large regional structural zone hosting 
the world class Guanajuato, Zacatecas, and Fresnillo epith-
ermal silver-gold vein districts.  All of the known deposits 
were found in outcrop between 350 and 500 years ago, but 
MAG believes that significant vein systems lie covered by 
the recent alluvial soils that mask over 60% of the trend. It 
has been shown that modern exploration technology is able 
to locate mineralization beneath this cover. 

MAG began their exploration for covered Fresnillo-style 
epithermal veins with compilation of the regional geo-
logical data and air photo and satellite image analysis and 
interpretation.  This led to staking the Lagartos properties 
because they lay along the trend, close to the Fresnillo and 
Zacatecas mining districts, and show strong geological 
similarities to those districts. The success of the Valdeca-
ñas Vein discovery has greatly enhanced our understanding 
of this highly productive and under explored region and 
we expect lessons learned there have potential to lead to 
further discoveries.

 

LAGARTOS
Municipio Fresnillo Zacatecas, Mexico
  



PHOTO: Old mine workings, Zacatecas Silver District

 Program results 2006

Work in the Lagartos Northwest area, 35 kilometres to the 
northwest of Fresnillo, in 2005 and 2006 focused on a zoned 
alteration centre, very similar to that seen at Juanicipio, 
surrounded by alluvial cover.  Biogeochemical and ground 
magnetic surveys of the flanking covered areas revealed lin-
ear magnetic anomalies parallel to the Fresnillo Silver Trend 
with overlapping and concentric biogeochemical silver, 
lead, zinc and copper anomalies. These structures and their 
associated metal anomalies can be traced for distances ap-
proaching eight kilometres. The drill program was designed 
to test structural intersections and geochemical anomalies in 
settings similar to those found at Juanicipio and Fresnillo. 

A 13 hole drill program, totaling 7,364 metres, was carried 
on these combined anomalies in 2006. All of the holes 
encountered strongly altered volcanic rocks under shallow 
alluvial cover, and three intersected the “Guerrero Ter-
rane” rocks that host the veins at Fresnillo and Juanicipio.  
One hole, drilled through alluvial cover 4 kilometres 
from the nearest outcrop, cut 3.5 metres grading 14 to 
49 grams per tonne (0.5 to 1.5 ounces per tonne) silver. 
 

The results indicate that silver mineralization is associated with 
this alteration centre and that our exploration methods are 
helping to “see through” alluvial cover. Additional explora-
tion in the northwest is clearly justified. 

The Lagartos Southeast or Zacatecas North block covers the 
broad plain lying between Fresnillo and the historic Zacate-
cas mining district. In 2006, MAG staked all of the open 
ground surrounding Zacatecas and purchased numerous 
claims over past producing veins within the district. This 
gives MAG the potential projections of the E-W trending 
district veins as well as the San Gabriel vein field in the 
northernmost part of the district.  

Work at San Gabriel in 2006 identified a number of significant 
vein structures that appear exposed at a very high level 
where further work is focused.  An 1,800 line kilometre 
airborne survey is expected to be completed in early 2007 
and will contribute to designing a drill program for the 
North Zacatecas area in mid 2007.
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MAG Silver’s 2006 drill program at Cinco de Mayo in northern 
Chihuahua, has once again moved another project from a 
conceptual model to discovery. New lead, zinc and silver 
mineralization was drilled on the floor of a broad valley 
covered by recent soils (alluvial). All of the targets drilled 
were buried (blind) geophysical and geochemical anoma-
lies that were consistent with our exploration model.

Cinco de Mayo is one of MAG’s four Carbonate Replacement 
Deposit (CRD) Style properties and the discovery here 
has important implications for the exploration of all four 
of these projects. Carbonate Replacement Deposits CRD’s 
have contributed 40% of Mexico’s historic silver produc-
tion, making them second only to epithermal veins. CRDs 
form a spectrum ranging from stock contact skarns, through 
dike and sill contact skarns and massive sulfides, to massive 
sulfide chimneys and mantos, with large systems ranging 
from 25 to 100 million tonnes of high-grade ores. Mexico’s 
CRDs occur along the intersection of the Laramide-aged 
Mexican Thrust Belt and the Tertiary volcanic plateau of 
the Sierra Madre Occidental, a zone where structurally 
prepared carbonate host rocks were invaded by metals-rich 
intrusive bodies. 

At Cinco de Mayo the regional story is very strong: the project 
lies on the western bounding fault of the Chihuahua Trough, 
the same structure that hosts major CRDs like Santa Eulalia 
(MAG’s Guigui property), Naica, San Pedro Corralitos and 
Terrazas. This gives rise to a thick carbonate section to host 
mineralization and a major regional zone of weakness for 
both ground preparation and intrusive emplacement. 

This ancient crustal break first controlled deposition of a thick 
section of carbonate host rocks, later movements created 
abundant structural fluid pathways, and finally it guided met-
als-rich magmas into place for optimal mineral deposition.  

At Cinco de Mayo there are numerous mineralization and 
alteration occurrences associated with this fault. These 
include old mines on the Cinco Chimney and Cinco Manto 
at opposite ends of the Cinco de Mayo ridge, Abundan-
cia, Celia and Orientales, all of which lie within MAG‘s 
property package.  Further, Cinco de Mayo Ridge is cut by 
numerous ferruginous jasperoid veins that carry strongly 
anomalous lead-zinc-copper-silver and gold values.  Despite 
the extensive cover, the nature and degree of mineralization 

and alteration in Cinco de Mayo Ridge strongly indicated 
that a significant CRD system may lay hidden nearby under 
the cover. 

 
Program results 2006

To aid in the ability to “see” through the alluvial cover, MAG 
conducted 45.1 line kilometres of NSAMT surveys on lines 
running northwest parallel to the Cinco de Mayo ridge and 
northeast across the ridge and parallel to the outcropping 
jasperoid vein swarms. In general the NSAMT data show a 
great deal of texture that is consistent with the regional un-
derstanding and with the details of our exploration model. 
The data show a profound northwest-southeast linearity 
and strong electrical contrasts along the northeast-south-
west lines.

MAG has also completed a major biogeochemical sampling 
program. Copper and zinc show the best definition, reveal-
ing a strong anomaly to the northeast of the Cinco Manto 
mineralization located on the nearby ridge. The linear 
patterns in the anomalies line up with the jasperoid vein 
swarms. The strongest anomalies occur off the northeast 
flank of the ridge, where most of the historic prospecting 
has taken place. There are also a series of anomalies on the 
SW side of the ridge that correspond closely with jasperoid 
veinlet swarms. 

 
Combining the geological, geochemical, biogeochemical, 

geophysical data and interpretations MAG developed a 
series of drill targets along a very prominent NW trend-
ing fault zone that cuts strongly folded massive limestone 
and limestone-rich sedimentary rocks. Nine holes totaling 
3,975 metres were drilled in an area roughly 1.5 kilometre 
wide and over 2 kilometre long with significant structur-
ally controlled replacement style massive to semi-massive 
sulphide mineralization occurring in six of the holes. At 
least trace mineralization was encountered in the remaining 
three holes. The intersections occur within broad zones of 
dispersed lead, zinc and iron sulphides developed in the sur-
rounding sedimentary rocks.  For example, the intercept in 
Hole 07 occurs within a 65 metre wide zone of stringer and 
dispersed lead and zinc sulphides. 

Hole 09 lies at the northernmost end of the 2 kilometre long 
drilling pattern and was drilled on a geophysical anomaly 

CINCO de MAYO
Municipio Villa Ahumada Chihuahua, Mexico



PHOTO: Jasperoids at Cinco de Mayo

detected in the initial processing of a 450 line kilometre 
airborne electromagnetic and magnetic survey flown during 
the drilling program.  Hole 09 intersected over 68 metres of 
strong hornfels (alteration developed near an igneous heat 
source) with widespread associated dispersed and veinlet 
zinc and lead sulphide mineralization.  Subsequent final 
processing of the geophysical data show that the Hole 09 
structure can be traced for kilometres in either direction and 
reveals several similar features that are obvious targets for 
Phase Two drilling. Significantly, intersecting hornfels in 
the Hole 09 airborne survey anomaly, suggests that buried 
mineralization-related igneous heat sources can be detected 
geophysically, which will be a valuable ingredient in fo-
cusing ongoing exploration programs at all MAG’s CRD 
properties. 

MAG contracted a 450 line kilometre airborne magnetic and 
electromagnetic survey which was completed in late 2006.  
The results are considered very significant and will guide 
further drilling later this year when integrated with previ-
ous work and the recent drill information.

  
Early systematic regional exploration work and the results of 

this first phase drill program clearly show that Cinco de 
Mayo has many geological and mineralogical characteris-
tics in common with the largest CRDs in Mexico. Man-
agement contends that successfully locating completely 
blind mineralization in initial drilling confirms that we are 
applying the right techniques in the right geological setting 
and that a mineralized carbonate replacement system of 
significant strength and size may be present.  

Hole number From (m) To (m) Interval (m) Ag (g/Tonne) Ag (Ounces) Pb (%) Zn (%)

Hole-01 318.09 324.20 6.11 22.5 0.65 1.4 5.7

including 320.57 321.84 1.27 4.6 0.13 1.6 11.6

Hole-01 355.30 357.18 1.88 190.9 5.56 4.3 7.9

Hole-02 253.47 253.89 0.42 130 3.79 0.5 3.1

Hole-05 292.4 292.7 0.30 124 3.60 6.7 2.7

Hole-06 198.7 199.0 0.23 463 13.5 17.5 0.3

Hole-07 321.87 326.17 4.30 82 2.39 3.0 2.6

Hole-08 317.68 324.18 6.50 27.4 0.80 1.2 2.2

including 319.8 323.3 3.51 45 1.31 1.9 3.1
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GUIGUI 
Santa Eulalia District, Municipio Aquiles Serdan Chihuahua, Mexico

PHOTO: View from Guigui

Guigui is a very prominent CRD style property within our proj-
ect portfolio. It is located within the Santa Eulalia Mining 
District, 22 kilometres east of Chihuahua City, Chihuahua 
in northernmost central Mexico.  Santa Eulalia was the 
world’s largest known CRD producing nearly 450 million 
ounces of silver and substantial amounts of lead and zinc 
over the nearly 300-year period from 1702-2001. Today 
Grupo Mexico operates the San Antonio Mine in the East 
Camp of Santa Eulalia District. 

 MAG controls all of the ground to the immediate south and 
between the east and west Camps of the Santa Eulalia 
mining district making us a significant player in any future 
developments in this historically silver rich district.

Mineralization in the district is very closely related in time and 
space to a series of felsite intrusions that apparently had a 
common stock source.  Similar intrusions occupy the centre 
of substantial additional stock contact mineralization in dis-
tricts such as San Martin, Zacatecas or Leadville, Colorado.  
The geologic model predicts that the principal intrusive 
centre related to district mineralization lies concealed under 
volcanic cover in the Guigui claims adjacent to the historic 
mining centre. It is the search for this intrusive source that 
is the foundation of exploration in the Guigui project.

A 9 hole drill program has been conducted by MAG since op-
tioning the Guigui property from Minera Cascabel in 2002. 
Hole 05 returned a narrow intercept that assayed 3.5 ounces 
per tonne of silver and 5.6 % lead and 4.3 % zinc over 0.40 
metres. Hole 6 returned with an 8.3 metre intercept of 4.2 
ounces per tonne silver. It is significant that these intersec-
tions were within a 30 to 100 metre wide zone of man-
ganoan-calcite (alteration) brecciation containing abundant 
veinlets and stringers of silver, lead and zinc minerals.

Program results 2006

Limited field work was conducted at Guigui in 2006 other than 
surface mapping in the areas of fluorite-cemented breccia 
bodies located in the central portion of the property.  It is 
believed that these bodies represent the upper vestiges of 
Carbonate Replacement processes at depth.

To aid in the design of a new drill program an 800 line kilometre 
airborne electromagnetic and magnetic survey was flown in 
late 2006.  Preliminary results are very encouraging and are 
to be integrated in early 2007 with the substantial data base 
we have accumulated at Guigui. Work will be designed to 
follow up on this integration leading to a drill plan.



The Adargas District is an 850 hectare CRD target that lies at 
the intersection of two exceptionally productive regional 
ore deposit trends.  Adargas mineralization consists of a 
series of irregular dike-contact replacement chimneys that 
plunge generally north and widen with depth.  Historic 
data indicate that pre-1924 production from Adargas was 
roughly 350,000 T of oxide ores grading 9-27 g/T (.25-.9 
oz/T) Au, 1000 g/T (34 oz/T) Ag, and 24-36% Pb.  High 
zinc grades are also present, but zinc was not recovered 
from the oxide ores.  High gold grades were encountered 
throughout the mine, with the highest in the deeper oxi-
dized parts of the mine.  

Adargas closely resembles the famous Naica deposit, which 
lies 120 metres to the NNW along one of the major regional 
trends.  Naica was “rediscovered” in the mid-1950’s by fol-
lowing dike contact mineralization to depth… changing it 
from an obscure occurrence to one of Mexico’s major Pb-Ag-
Zn mines. The exploration concept for Adargas is virtually 
identical. This is accomplished by working outwards from 
the old mine area and moving towards showings of similar 
mineralization that occur for several kilometres along strike.

MAG acquired the property from Minera Cascabel who worked 
the property under contract from 1991 to 1998.  

MAG drilled four diamond core holes in 2004, centred proxi-
mal to the known 0.30 metre sulfide intercept.  All four 
holes intersected dikes, garnet-epidote skarn and variable 
amounts of sulfide mineralization.  The best hole returned 
1.20 metres of massive galena and sphalerite grading 300 
ppb Au, 55 ppm Ag, 9.0% Pb and 5.8% Zn.

Subsequent borehole geophysics has identified a promising off-
hole response indicative of a conductive source probably 
located below Hole 02 and consistent with the geological 
model for Adargas. 

Program results 2006

Promising results on other properties took priority in 2006 and 
no field work was carried out at Adargas in 2006.  The deep 
targets are still viable and remain to be tested. We have, 
however been approached by several entities that are in-
terested in a possible joint venture at Adargas.  Going into 
2007 we were awaiting proposals and terms.

ADARGAS 
Municipio Jimenez, Chihuahua, Mexico

The Sierra Ramirez District lies in eastern Durango State, ap-
proximately 80 kilometre west of the famous Providencia-
Concepcion del Oro, Zacatecas District.  Sierra Ramirez is 
a typical Mexican CRD target that produced and estimated 
750,000-1,000,000 tonnes of very high grade (1000-3000 
g/T Ag) Ag-Pb-Zn ores from Spanish Colonial times until 
the mid 1960s.  MAG has acquired an option from Minera 
Rio Tinto of Chihuahua, Mexico to earn 100% interest in 
over 80% of the district.  

  
The Sierra Ramirez is a 7 by 15 kilometre E-W oriented 

anticline fold composed of Jurassic Zuloaga Limestone 
cut by at least 2 rhyolite plugs. Mineralization consists 
of silver-lead-zinc replacement veins in the western part 
of the area and mantos hosted in distinct carbonate strata 
in the central and eastern portions.  Small amounts of 
skarn are known to exist proximal to the rhyolite areas. 
Exploration of the district will involve the unraveling of 
the overall controls and metal zoning to best define the 
most favorable areas for further exploration.  

 
Initially MAG Silver executed district-scale mapping and sam-

pling in 2004, with a focus on determining the size of the min-
eralized zone(s) and confirming existing concepts of district 
metal zoning.  The resulting district-scale metal ratio zoning 
patterns revealed three principal mineralization centres. 

 
Inclement weather and other priorities resulted in very little 

field work in 2006.

Program results 2006

Sierra Ramirez is our least developed CRD property but one 
with a great deal of potential. In recognition of that MAG 
Silver contracted a 1,400 line kilometre AEM Survey that 
was completed in mid-February 2007.  The preliminary 
results have given us a number of direct drill targets and 
will no doubt be a significant enhancement to targets gen-
erated by our geochemical and geological work to date. 
Field programs aimed and defining specific drill targets 
will be carried out in 2007.

In order to make up for lost time due to weather and access 
delays in the past we were able to renegotiate the terms 
of our option agreement with Minera Rio Tinto to earn 
100% interest in the property. In effect we were able to 
roll the agreement back two years and continue with the 
payment schedule as outlined in the original agreement. 
This allowed us the time to fly the airborne survey and 
conduct the appropriate follow up programs.  Drilling is 
planned to begin by late 2007.

SIERRA RAMIREZ 
Municipo San Juan De Guadalupe Durango, Mexico
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Daniel MacInnis 
President and CEO 

 Mr. MacInnis has over thirty years experience in worldwide 
mineral exploration. He has managed and directed multi-mil-
lion dollar exploration programs for Noranda Exploration, 
Battle Mountain Gold/Hemlo Gold, and Sargold Resources. Mr. 
MacInnis has extensive global experience in property acquisi-
tions and joint venture negotiations and operation. A significant 
number of mineral discoveries have been made under the 
guidance of Mr. MacInnis. Discoveries include gold and base 
metal deposits in the US, Canada and Mexico. Mr. MacInnis is 
a Registered Professional Geoscientist (P.Geo) and is a graduate 
of Saint Francis Xavier University with a BSc. in Geology.

Dave Pearce 
Director and Secretary
 
 Mr. Pearce is President of Palmer Beach Properties Inc., a pri-

vate real estate development and investment company with real 
estate, retail and equity holdings in Canada. Mr. Pearce is also a 
director of MAX Resource Corp., a high-grade mineral explo-
ration company which trades on the TSX Venture Exchange.

Eric H. Carlson
Director

 Mr. Carlson is the founder of the Anthem Properties Group. An-
them is a Vancouver based real estate investment, development 
and management company focused on retail and residential 
properties predominantly in Western Canada. Mr. Carlson is 
also involved as an investor, advisor and director in a number of 
other businesses in the mining, technology and capital manage-
ment sectors.  Mr. Carlson is a Chartered Accountant and holds 
a Bachelor of Commerce degree from the University of British 
Columbia.

R. Michael Jones, P.Eng 
Director 

 Mr. Jones brings 20 years of experience as a professional geo-
logical engineer and has been involved with raising over $200 
million for exploration, mining development and production. 
Michael is a founder and CEO of Platinum Group Metals Ltd. 
He was a founder of Glimmer Resources Inc. and was respon-
sible for the discovery of the Glimmer Gold mine in Ontario. 
During a six-year tenure as President of Cathedral Gold, Mr. 
Jones ran a producing mining company and was involved in 
the review of a feasibility study and financing for a $1 billion 
mining project during two years as Vice President with Aber 
Resources. Mr. Jones also served on the Securities Policy 
Advisory Committee of the British Columbia Securities Com-
mission for six years. Mr. Jones holds a B.A.Sc. in geological 
engineering from University of Toronto. 

Gordon Neal 
VP Corporate Development 

 Mr. Neal was the founder of Neal McInerney Investor Relations, 
which grew to be the second largest Investor Relations firm in 
Canada with international offices serving a Financial Post 500 
and Forbes 100 client base. During his time as President of this 
firm he marketed more than $4 billion of debt and equity to 
institutional investors in Canada, the United States and Europe. 
Mr. Neal graduated from Dalhousie University with a B.Sc. in 
Biochemistry.

Frank Hallam 
CFO 

 Mr. Hallam was the original founder of New Millennium Metals 
Inc. He was previously an auditor with Coopers and Lybrand. 
Mr. Hallam has extensive experience at the senior management 
level with several publicly listed resource companies. He is a 
Chartered Accountant and has a degree in business administra-
tion from Simon Fraser University. 

Dr. Peter K.M. Megaw 
Director  

 Dr. Megaw’s initial involvement in Mexican geology was 
through his MS research at the University of Texas at Austin, 
and later his Ph.D. work at the University of Arizona. The latter 
was an in-depth exploration-focused geological/ geochemical 
study of the Santa Eulalia Ag-Pb-Zn District, Chihuahua and 
Carbonate Replacement Deposits (CRDs) in general. Peter’s 
primary exploration foci are CRDs, Vein Deposits and Porphyry 
Copper Deposits. He specializes in property evaluation and ac-
quisition for clients through collaboration with his associates in 
Minera Cascabel.  Dr. Megaw is president of IMDEX/Cascabel 
and co-founder of Minera Cascabel S.A. de C.V. 

Jonathan Rubenstein 
Director

 Mr. Rubenstein was appointed to the Board February 26, 2007. 
He is also Vice President, Corporate Secretary and a Director 
of Andagan Resource Corp. In 2001 Mr. Rubenstein was one 
of the founders of Canico Resources Corp., where he served 
as a Director and as Vice President & Corporate Secretary as 
the company acquired, explored and developed its Onça Puma 
nickel deposit in Brazil. Mr. Rubenstein was instrumental in 
the negotiations for the 2005 acquisition of Canico by CVRD 
of Brazil for $941 million. As Vice President, Corporate Affairs 
for Sutton Resources, he also played a key role in negotiating 
the $525 million takeover of that company by Barrick Gold 
Corporation in 1999. He had practiced law until 1993 and has 
been a mining executive since that time.
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 1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS OF MAG SILVER CORP

The Company was originally incorporated under the Company Act 
(British Columbia) on April 21, 1999 under the name “583882 
B.C. Ltd.”. On June 28, 1999, in anticipation of becoming a 
capital pool company, the Company changed its name to “Mega 
Capital Investments Inc.”. On April 22, 2003, the Company 
changed its name to “MAG Silver Corp” to reflect its new busi-
ness upon the completion of its Qualifying Transaction. The 
principal business of the Company is the acquisition, explora-
tion and development of mineral properties.

The Company is a “reporting” company in the Provinces of Brit-
ish Columbia, Alberta and Ontario. The Company’s Common 
Shares were listed and posted for trading on the TSX Venture 
Exchange (TSXV: MGA) on April 19, 2000. Concurrent with 
the Company’s name change to MAG Silver Corp on April 22, 
2003, the trading symbol was changed to “MAG”.

MAG Silver’s reporting currency is the Canadian dollar and all 
amounts in this discussion and in the consolidated financial 
statements are expressed in Canadian dollars, unless identified 
otherwise.  The company reports its financial position, results 
of operations and cash flows in accordance with Canadian 
generally accepted accounting principles (“Canadian GAAP”).  
MAG Silver’s significant accounting policies are set out in 
Note 2 of the audited consolidated financial statements.

Except for historical information contained in this MD&A, the fol-
lowing disclosures are forward-looking statements within the 
meaning of the Private Securities Litigation reform Act of 1995 
or are future oriented financial information and as such are 
based on an assumed set of economic conditions and courses 
of action.  These may include estimates of future production 
levels, expectations regarding mine production and develop-
ment programs and capital costs, expected trends in mineral 
prices and statements that describe future plans, objectives or 
goals.  There is significant risk that actual results will vary, 
perhaps materially, from results projected depending on such 
factors as discussed under Risks and Uncertainties in this 
MD&A and other risk factors listed from time-to-time in the 
Company’s Annual Information Form.  Additional information 
about MAG Silver and its business activities is available on 
SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

On April 15, 2003, concurrent with the completion of its Qualifying 
Transaction, the Company raised gross proceeds of $5,750,000 
from the sale of 11,500,000 units at a price of $0.50 per unit.  
Since that time the Company has received approximately 
$4,595,000 from the exercise of warrants from this financing, 
as well as warrants from previous financings. The Company 
remains in strong financial condition as a result of the April 
15, 2003 financing and the exercise of share purchase war-
rants. The Company has generally followed its budgeted use 
of proceeds shown in the Company’s Prospectus dated March 
31, 2003, but due to the extra money received, the Company 
acquired other mineral properties, and increased some mineral 
exploration activities.

On July 8, 2005, the Company established an exploration agreement 
with Industrias Peñoles, S.A. de C.V. (Peñoles) on our Juani-
cipio Property in Zacatecas State. This agreement (effective date 
of July 01, 2005) was the culmination of extensive negotiations 
carried out during the first half of 2005, fuelled by MAG’s 2003 
& 2004 exploration program at Juanicipio and Peñoles explora-
tion success at the nearby El Saucito vein discovery.  

Under the terms of the agreement Peñoles can earn a 56% interest 
in Juanicipio by spending $5,000,000 US over 4 years, includ-
ing a $750,000 US expenditure commitment in year one (2005) 
(completed) with a minimum of 3,000 metres of diamond 
drilling by Peñoles (completed, drilled 7,562 metres in 2005). 
Under the terms of the agreement Peñoles agreed to make two 
$500,000 US investments (completed) in common shares of 
the Company. On May 2, 2005 the TSX Venture exchange ap-
proved the first Peñoles private placement, which consisted of 
621,577 common shares at $0.967. On March 2, 2006 the Com-
pany closed the private placement subscribed to by Industrias 
Peñoles S.A. de C.V. (“Peñoles”) which consisted of 245,716 
common shares of MAG Silver Corp. at $2.35. This equates to 
a cumulative investment of $1,178,498 (US$1,000,000).

To the end of the 2005 year Peñoles had completed 7 diamond drill 
holes for a total of about 7,562 metres of drilling.  In early 2006 
the Company announced that a new, high grade silver / gold 
vein has been intersected in two holes at Juanicipio. On May 9, 
2006 the Company announced that Peñoles was commencing 
further exploration drilling on the Juanicipio project in an area 
1.8 kilometres west of the new discovery. In August 2006 the 
company announced that Peñoles had purchased the surface 
rights to an area covering the projection of the new discovery 
for US$1.4 million. Subsequent to the land purchase drilling 
commenced on the “Valdecañas Vein” in October and by year 
end Peñoles had drilled another 10,758 metres and completed 
a total of  US$3.36 million in exploration expenditures. Assay 
results released in November 2006 through early 2007 for this 
drilling have confirmed that the Valdecañas vein is a significant 
high grade silver gold vein discovery.

On December 22, 2005, the Company raised gross proceeds of 
$6,494,749 from the sale of 6,494,749 units at a price of $1.00 
per unit in a brokered, non-brokered financing. Each unit con-
sisted of one common share and one-half of one share purchase 
warrant, with each whole warrant entitling the holder to pur-
chase one share at a price of $1.35 per share for a period of 18 
months until June 21, 2007. The Agents were granted warrants 
to purchase up to 295,190 shares of the Company at a price of 
$1.35 in partial payment of services rendered in connection 
with their portion of the financing. The commission paid to the 
Agents was $295,190, equal to 7% of the gross proceeds of the 
Offering, comprising of $210,340 in cash and $84,850 in units of 
the offering. Each unit consisted of one common share and one 
half share purchase warrant. Corporate finance fees, legal fees, 
TSX fees and related expenditures totalled $113,802. The net 
proceeds to the Company from the financing were $6,170,607.

MANAGEMENT  DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 
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During 2005 the Company renegotiated the property agreements 
at Don Fippi and Guigui.  Under the new terms of the property 
agreements MAG Silver purchased 100% interest in both proper-
ties through the issuance of 750,000 common shares per property 
(1,5000,000 in aggregate).  As a result of the purchases MAG 
has extinguished the exposure to cash payments and work com-
mitments on both properties and reduced the number of shares 
required to be issued under the previous agreement.  Both proper-
ties are a significant part of MAG’s portfolio of properties. 

Various drill programs over the past four years (2003, 2004, 2005 
and 2006) at Juanicipio, Batopilas Lagartos, Guigui, and Cinco 
de Mayo have been successful in moving these projects from 
conceptual exploration plays to new mineral discoveries de-
serving of further detailed follow up. This is best exemplified 
by drilling results in 2005 and 2006 at Juanicipio (by Peñoles) 
and at Batopilas (by MAG in 2005) and Guigui (2005), Cinco 
de Mayo (2006) where there were significant new silver vein 
and silver/base metal discoveries demanding further follow up 
and exploration focus.

New district scale targets were also identified at Lagartos NW, 
Lagartos SE, and at Sierra  Ramirez.  A first pass drill program 
was completed at Cinco de Mayo property for 3,795 metres. 
Lagartos NW was investigated with a 13 hole, 7,365 metre 
drill program in 2006.  Airborne Magnetic and electromagnetic 
surveys were flown at Cinco de Mayo and Guigui for 1,250 
line kilometres in late 2006.  Surveys are in progress for 2007 
at Sierra Ramirez, Juanicipio, Lagartos SE and Batopilas, for a 
total of 3,760 line kilometres.

The Company has increased land positions in a number of areas 
(Lagartos NW, Lagartos SE, Cinco de Mayo and Sierra 
Ramirez) Active exploration programs continue on all of our 
land holdings with the directive to advance these projects to-
wards  drill programs.

2. DISCUSSION OF OPERATIONS & FINANCIAL CONDITION

a)	 Results	of	Operations

During the year ended December 31, 2006 the Company earned 
interest income of $208,593 (2005 - $80,432) on short-term 
investments and cash on hand. Cash at December 31, 2006 
amounted to $3,506,930 (2005 – $7,560,193). 

General and administrative expenses amounted to $4,075,160 
(2005 - $1,891,270) during the year. After deducting interest 
earned of $208,593 (2005 - $80,432), the operating loss for the 
year was ($3,866,567) (2005 – ($1,810,838)). Stock compen-
sation expense, a non-cash item, amounted to $2,341,159 this 
year (2005 - $611,353). General and administrative expenses in 
2006 increased when compared to 2005 the Company becom-
ing more active, resulting in generally higher expenses.

 
Office and telephone expense of $365,880 was higher than the 

amount of $252,257 in 2005. Travel and accommodation 
expenses for the year totaled $212,168 which is higher than 
$169,993 in 2005. Management and personnel traveled to and 
from Mexico many times during the year. Management also 
attended trade shows. Management and consulting fees of 

$485,993 were higher than the $415,117 incurred in 2005 as 
more management personnel have been hired. Consulting and 
management fees have been paid to several individuals includ-
ing directors and an officer. (See related party transactions).

During the year ended December 31, 2006 legal fees amounted 
to $89,810 (2005 - $167,005), filing and transfer agent fees 
totaled $48,782 (2005 - $42,254), shareholder relations to-
taled $288,687 (2005 - $109,803) while accounting and audit 
expenses totaled $211,168 (2005 - $127,959). Accounting and 
audit expenses include amounts incurred in connection with 
the Company’s annual United States Securities and Exchange 
Commission (“SEC”) Registration Form 20F.  Legal expenses 
were lower in 2006 as the Company had fewer property transac-
tions during the year. Shareholder relations expenses increased 
as the Company made greater efforts to raise awareness of the 
Company. Other smaller expense items account for the balance 
of general and administrative costs for the period. The Com-
pany occupies office space and receives administrative services 
on a contract basis.

Fourth quarter net loss was $818,389 compared to $483,824 for the 
same quarter last year. If one removed the stock compensation 
expense, a non-cash item, of $386,861 for the fourth quarter of 
both 2006 and 2005 the resulting losses would be $431,528 and 
$451,216 respectively. Most cash expense items were fairly 
consistent over the four quarters in 2006.

The following tables set forth selected financial data from the 
Company’s Financial Statements and should be read in con-
junction with these financial statements.

 

Net loss during the year ended December 31, 2006 doubled as compared 
to the prior year mainly as a result of  stock compensation expense. 

The following table sets forth selected quarterly financial informa-
tion for each of the last eight (8) quarters.

	
Quarter	Ending

	
Revenue

	
Net	Loss

Net	Loss		
per	Share

December 31, 2006 $44,407 $(818,389) $(0.02)

September 30, 2006 $48,664 $(570,796) $(0.015)

June 30, 2006 70,804 (1,485,493) $(0.035)

March 31, 2006 44,718 (991,889) (0.03)

December 31, 2005 16,409 (483,824) (0.015)

September 30, 2005 29,780 (320,422) (0.01)

June 30, 2005 12,042 (256,515) (0.01)

March 31, 2005 22,201 (750,077) (0.025)

December 31, 2004 11,611 (243,843) (0.01)

Year	ended	Dec.	
31,	2006

Year	ended	
Dec.	31,	2005

Year	ended	Dec.	
31,	2004

Revenue $208,593 $80,432 $66,999

Net Loss ($3,866,567) ($1,810,838) ($733,897)

Net Loss per Share ($0.10) ($0.06) ($0.03)

Total Assets $18,930,558 $18,075,406 $9,774,297

Long Term Debt Nil Nil Nil

Dividends Nil Nil Nil



At year end, the Company had completed its drilling program at 
the Cinco de Mayo property, results of which were released 
in February 2007. The Company conducted exploration work 
in Mexico on its other properties and assessed past results in 
preparation for its Batopilas (Don Fippi) drill program which 
began in earnest in February 2007. 

The Company has not declared nor paid dividends on its common 
shares.  The Company has no intention of paying dividends on 
its common shares in the near future, as it anticipates that all 
available funds will be invested to finance the growth of its 
business.

b)	 Trend	Information

Other than the obligations under the Company’s property option 
agreements set out in “Tabular Disclosure of Contractual Obliga-
tions”, there are no identifiable trends, demands, commitments, 
events or uncertainties that will result in, or that are reasonably 
likely to result in, the Company’s liquidity either increasing or 
decreasing at present or in the foreseeable future.  The Company 
will require sufficient capital in the future to meet its acquisition 
payments and other obligations under property option agree-
ments for those properties it considers worthy to incur continued 
holding and exploration costs upon.  The need to make such 
payments is a “Trend” as it is unlikely that all such obligations 
will be eliminated from the Company’s future business activi-
ties.  The Company intends to utilize cash on hand in order to 
meet its obligations under property option agreements until at 
least March 31, 2009. The scale and scope of the Juanicipio Joint 
Venture could change this timeline as exploration progresses. It 
is unlikely that the Company will generate sufficient operating 
cash flow to meet these ongoing obligations in the foreseeable 
future. Accordingly the Company will likely need to raise ad-
ditional capital by issuance of equity in the future.  At this time 
the Company has no plan or intention to issue any debt in order 
to raise capital for future requirements.

At the time of writing there is a noted favourable trend with regard 
to the market for metal commodities and related companies, 
however, it is the opinion of the Company that its own liquidity 
will be most affected by the results of its exploration activi-
ties.  The discovery of an economic mineral deposit on one of 
its mineral properties may have a favourable effect on the 
Company’s liquidity, and conversely, the failure to find one 
may have a negative effect.

c)	 Risk	Factors

The following is a brief discussion of those distinctive or special 
characteristics of the Company’s operations and industry that 
may have a material impact on, or constitute risk factors in 
respect of, the Company’s future financial performance.

The Company, and thus the securities of the Company, should be 
considered a highly speculative investment and investors should 
carefully consider all of the information disclosed in this Annual 
Report prior to making an investment in the Company.  In ad-
dition to the other information presented in this Annual Report, 
the following risk factors should be given special consideration 
when evaluating an investment in the Company’s securities.

General

Resource exploration and development is a speculative business, 
characterized by a number of significant risks including, among 
other things, unprofitable efforts resulting not only from the 
failure to discover mineral deposits but also from finding min-
eral deposits, which, though present, are insufficient in quantity 
and quality to return a profit from production.  

The Company’s business is subject to exploration and development 
risks

All of the Company’s properties are in the exploration stage of 
development and no known reserves have been discovered on 
such properties.  There is no certainty that the expenditures to 
be made by the Company or its joint venture partners in the 
exploration of its properties described herein will result in 
discoveries of precious metals in commercial quantities or 
that any of the Company’s properties will be developed.  Most 
exploration projects do not result in the discovery of precious 
metals and no assurance can be given that any particular level 
of recovery of precious metals will in fact be realized or that 
any identified resource will ever qualify as a commercially 
mineable (or viable) resource which can be legally and eco-
nomically exploited.  Estimates of reserves, mineral deposits 
and production costs can also be affected by such factors as 
environmental permit regulations and requirements, weather, 
environmental factors, unforeseen technical difficulties, unusu-
al or unexpected geological formations and work interruptions. 
In addition, the grade of precious metals ultimately discovered 
may differ from that indicated by drilling results.  There can be 
no assurance that precious metals recovered in small-scale tests 
will be duplicated in large-scale tests under on-site conditions 
or in production scale.

Political and economic instability may affect the Company’s business

The Company’s activities in Canada and Mexico are subject to 
risks common to operations in the mining industry in general, 
as well as certain political and economic uncertainties related 
specifically to operating in Mexico.  The Company’s operations 
in general may also be affected in varying degrees by political 
and economic instability, terrorism, crime, extreme fluctuations 
in currency exchange rates and inflation.

The Company is subject to the risk of fluctuations in the relative val-
ues of the Canadian dollar as compared to the Mexican Peso

The Company may be adversely or favorably affected by foreign 
currency fluctuations.  The Company is primarily funded 
through equity investments into the Company denominated 
in Canadian Dollars.  Several of the Company’s options to 
acquire properties in Mexico may result in option payments by 
the Company denominated in Mexican Pesos or in U.S. dol-
lars over the next three years.  Exploration and development 
programs to be conducted by the Company in Mexico will also 
be funded in Mexican Pesos or in U.S. dollars.  Fluctuations 
in the exchange rate between the Canadian dollar and both the 
U.S. dollar and Mexican Peso may have an adverse or favor-
able affect on the Company.
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The Company’s properties are subject to title risks

The Company has investigated title to all of its mineral properties 
and, to the best of its knowledge, title to all of its properties, and 
properties that it has the right to acquire or earn an interest in, 
are in good standing.  However, the Company’s properties may 
be subject to prior unregistered agreements or transfers and title 
may be affected by undetected defects.  These defects could 
adversely affect the Company’s title to such properties or delay 
or increase the cost of the development of such properties. 

The Company’s properties may also be subject to aboriginal or other 
historical rights that may be claimed on Crown properties or 
other types of tenure with respect to which mineral rights have 
been conferred.  The Company is not aware of any aboriginal 
land claims having been asserted or any legal actions relating 
to native issues having been instituted with respect to any of 
the mineral properties in which the Company has an interest.  
The Company is aware of the mutual benefits afforded by co-
operative relationships with indigenous people in conducting 
exploration activity and is supportive of measures established 
to achieve such co-operation.

Environmental Risk

Environmental legislation on a global basis is evolving in a manner 
that will ensure stricter standards and enforcement, increased 
fines and penalties for non-compliance, more stringent environ-
mental assessment of proposed development and a higher level 
of responsibility for companies and their officers, directors and 
employees.  There is no assurance that future changes to envi-
ronmental legislation in Canada or Mexico will not adversely 
the Company’s operations.  Environmental hazards may exist 
on properties in which the Company holds interests which are 
unknown at present and which have been caused by previous or 
existing owners or operators.  Furthermore, future compliance 
with environmental reclamation, closure and other require-
ments may involve significant costs and other liabilities.  In 
particular, the Company’s operations and exploration activities 
are subject to Canadian and Mexican national and provincial 
laws and regulations governing protection of the environment.  
Such laws are continually changing and, in general, are becom-
ing more restrictive.

The mineral exploration industry is extremely competitive

The resource industry is intensely competitive in all of its phases, 
and the Company competes with many companies possessing 
greater financial resources and technical facilities than itself.  
Competition could adversely affect the Company’s ability to 
acquire suitable new producing properties or prospects for 
exploration in the future.  Competition could also affect the 
Company’s ability to raise financing to fund the exploration and 
development of its properties or to hire qualified personnel.

Metal prices affect the success of the Company’s business

The mining industry in general is intensely competitive and there 
is no assurance that, even if commercial quantities of mineral 
resources are developed, a profitable market will exist for the 
sale of such product.  Factors beyond the control of the Com-

pany may affect the marketability of any minerals discovered.  
No assurance may be given that metal prices will remain stable.  
Significant price fluctuations over short periods of time may 
be generated by numerous factors beyond the control of the 
Company, including domestic and international economic and 
political trends, expectations of inflation, currency exchange 
fluctuations, interest rates, global or regional consumption 
patterns, speculative activities and increased production due to 
improved mining and production methods.  The effect of these 
factors on the price of minerals and therefore the economic 
viability of any of the Company’s exploration projects cannot 
accurately be predicted.  As the Company is in the exploration 
stage, the above factors have had no material impact on present 
operations or income.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

 The Company has no off-balance sheet arrangements.

d)	 Exploration	Programs	and	Expenditures

During the year ended December 31, 2006 the Company incurred 
$646,029 in property acquisition costs, comprised of $441,598 
in cash and $204,431 in shares issued, comprised of 3,363 
common shares @ $2.25; 61,680 common shares @ $2.30; and 
20,000 common shares @ $2.75;  (2005 - $1,581,558 ($253,736 
in cash and $1,327,822 in shares, comprised of 13,382 common 
shares @ $0.95; 1,500,000 common shares @ $0.81; 119,660 
common shares @ $0.764 and 12,466 common shares @ $0.70)) 
in property acquisition costs.  Exploration expenditures in cash 
for the period amounted to $4,016,728 (2005 - $1,429,307).

On April 4, 2005 the Company announced the signing of a letter 
agreement for the establishment of an exploration Joint Venture 
covering MAG’s wholly-owned 7,679 hectare Juanicipio Prop-
erty in Zacatecas, Mexico with Peñoles. The formal agreement 
was signed in early October 2005 with the effective date and 
anniversary date of July 01, 2005.

The principal features of the agreement are:  

(i) Peñoles can earn a 56% interest in Juanicipio upon comple-
tion of a US$5,000,000 exploration program on or before the 
end of year 4 of the agreement.  To February 28, 2007 Peñoles 
has spent approximately US$3,719,000 and completed 20,900 
metres of diamond drilling.

(ii)  Peñoles was obligated to incur exploration expenditures of at least 
US$750,000 in year one, including a minimum of 3,000 metres of 
diamond drilling and Peñoles completed the obligation.

 
(iii) A flexible and staged exploration program is included in the 

contract.  Exploration work will be supervised by a technical 
committee comprised of three representatives from Peñoles and 
two from MAG Silver.  Peñoles and MAG Silver are obliged 
to share their information in the district.  Part of the geological 
and exploration work will be conducted by MAG consultants 
and in-house personnel.   

(iv) Exploration results from Juanicipio will be published as ap-
propriate on an ongoing basis, with both companies to agree 
on the content.



(v)  On signing of the agreement Peñoles subscribed for a required 
US$500,000 private placement for a total of 621,577 shares of 
the Company at a price of C$0.967 per share.  Later, on March 
2, 2006, Peñoles subscribed for a second required US$500,000 
private placement for a total of 245,716 MAG shares, at a price 
of C$2.35 per share.

(vi) Peñoles was obligated to incur further exploration expenditures 
of at least US$1,000,000 in year two and Peñoles has completed 
the obligation.

Peñoles initiated their exploration program in August of 2005 
which included geophysical orientation surveys, geological 
and structural mapping programs and diamond drilling of 
seven holes for a total of about 7,562 metres of core recovery 
by December 31, 2005.  Results of this program include the 
significant discovery of a new high grade silver / gold vein in 
the extreme north east corner of the property. This discovery is 
identified as the Valdecañas Vein.

Assay results from the second hole (discovery hole) in the Valdecañas 
Vein discovery, Hole 16, returned high-grade silver – gold val-
ues over 6.35 metres (20.8 feet) (5.50 metres true thickness = 18 
feet) of 1,798 grams per tonne silver (57.8 ounces), 2.91 grams 
per tonne gold, 3.43% lead and 5.51% zinc.  This includes 2.95 
metres (9.6 feet) of 2,807 grams per tonne silver (90.3 ounces), 
3.27 grams per tonne gold, 5.94% lead and 9.14% zinc. The 
new vein intersection lays approximately 1,000 metres north of 
the Juanicipio Vein, the initial vein discovery drilled by MAG 
Silver in 2003 and recently confirmed by Peñoles drilling. 

After the initial release of information in January of 2006 confirm-
ing the discovery at Juanicipio, follow up work was curtailed 
until August 2006. In August Peñoles, on behalf of the joint 
venture, purchased the surface rights within the Juanicipio Joint 
Venture centred on the Valdecañas Vein. 

In an agreement with the land owners Peñoles paid MP$ 15,862,500 
(US$ 1,469,648) for the surface rights. This payment will be 
applied to Peñoles’ earn in expenditure as per the joint venture 
agreement with MAG.

Drilling at Juanicipio started in August on a fence of 5 drill holes 
along a line located almost 2 kilometres to the west of the 
Valdecañas discovery hole 16. The target was the strike projec-
tion of the Valdecañas Vein.

 
Four holes were completed, two of which were on Peñoles 100% 

owned property. The other two holes were drilled on MAG’s 
Juanicipio project and results have yet to be released. At least 
one further hole is needed to complete this program. As pro-
posed, this work will be restarted once drilling at Valdecañas 
has better defined the vein. All airborne electromagnetic and 
magnetic survey, to be flown in early 2007 will also help in 
targeting the Valdecañas structure to the west.

Peñoles began work on the Valdecañas discovery by initiating an 
eighteen hole, fifteen thousand metre definition drill program in 
October 2006. Peñoles drilled a further 10,758 metres in 2006 
and proposed an additional 28,000 metres utilizing a minimum 
of 4 drills going into the 2007 program. The definition drill 

program is designed to delineate the Valdecañas Vein over a 
1.2 kilometre section of potential strike length, along 100 metre 
sections and at 100 metre separation up and down dip. This 
program was ongoing at the end of February 2007.

The drilling to date clearly demonstrates that Valdecañas is a low-
sulphidation vein typical of the Fresnillo District. The vein ex-
hibits the characteristic metal zoning over a 350 metre vertical 
height as seen in all of the principal veins at Fresnillo. Peñoles 
continues to operate the drill program directed at delineating 
the extent of the Valdecañas vein.

Combined with exploration expenditures to date Peñoles has com-
pleted approximately US$3,719,000 (to February 28, 2007) of 
their $ US 5,000,000 required expenditure to earn a 56% inter-
est in the Juanicipio property. MAG will retain a 44% interest 
in Juanicipio. The Company had spent a total of $2,146,318 to 
its own account in exploration costs at Juanicipio to December 
31, 2006 (2005 - $2,026,095). 

At Batopilas a ten-hole 2500 metre drill program was initiated in the 
fall of 2005 to test preliminary drill targets and help refine the 
exploration methods MAG is developing to explore its holdings 
in the Batopilas silver district. This program was expanded to 
12 holes and 3,025 metres were drilled to March 31, 2006.

The first seven holes focused in the area of detailed NSAMT geo-
physics. Five of the holes tested a well defined NSAMT low 
resistivity zone and two holes targeted a NW trending structure 
hosting the San Martin Nuevo adit, a prospect containing native 
silver that was briefly worked in the early 1970’s.

The second hole, BA05-02, intercepted 1.7 metres of 2,357 grams 
per tonne Ag (75.8 opt) as well as a second 1.7 metre intercept 
further down the hole containing 132 grams per tonne Ag (4.2 
opt). Other nearby intercepts define a  north 070  west striking, 
78º southwest dipping vein (The Don Juan) that shows a dis-
tinct geochemical signature containing high silver along with 
anomalous arsenic, molybdenum  and plus or minus anomalous 
cobalt and nickel. This new discovery has not been tested to the 
south-southeast and remains open along strike in both direc-
tions and at depth.

Two holes, BA05-03 and BA06-04 were designed to test the area 
around and beneath the San Martin Nuevo workings. These 
showed multiple intercepts of the signature Batopilas chemistry 
of Ag-As-Mo-Pb-Zn; however, the best intercepts encountered in 
this area were zones approximately 1.0 metre thick in the 11 to 40 
gram per tonne Ag range, or roughly 0.4 to 1.3 ounce per tonne. 

Five holes BA06-08 through BA06-012 focused on the Pastrana 
Vein to evaluate this historic past producing structure beyond 
its’ productive zones. Drilling to date has identified the northern 
extension of Pastrana Vein with 4 intersections over a strike 
length of 140 metres and a vertical distance of 40 metres. Best 
intercept was in Hole 10 with 0.73 metres of 47 grams per tonne 
Ag (1.5 opt).

 Other work in 2006 and to date in 2007 at Batopilas included: un-
derground topographic surveys of the old workings; a detailed 
590 line kilometre airborne geophysical (magnetics and elec-
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tromagnetics) survey focusing on delimiting structures over the 
entire 40 square kilometre land package (initiated in late Febru-
ary 2007); a detailed stream sediment and ridge and spur soil 
sampling program that focused on the signature multi-element 
suite defined during the drill program and a detailed geologi-
cal re-mapping of the entire project area. The Pastrana tunnel 
has been re-opened and mapping and sampling was completed 
prior to the drill program which began in February 2007.

This work was successful in identifying a number of important 
exploration control vectors at Batopilas that included: a better 
understanding of the Lithological controls of the native silver 
mineralization; the structural history and structural ore host 
controls; the vein and structural geochemistry as well as the 
lateral and vertical metal zoning characteristics of the vein 
mineralization.

The net result of this work coupled with the results of the geochemi-
cal soil and silt program helped identify a number of targets that 
are to be tested later in the 2007 program. Work is continuing. 
The Company had spent a total of $2,082,845 in exploration 
costs at Don Fippi (Batopilas) to December 31, 2006 (2005 
- $1,240,889).

At Lagartos NW, (Cerro Cacalote) results received from a large and 
comprehensive biogeochemical survey have identified a num-
ber of long (up to eight kilometres) coincident silver, lead, zinc, 
copper and bismuth anomalies.  The geochemical anomalies 
lie outboard of a large area identified from ASTER imaging 
as having the same alteration signature identified at Juanicipio.  
Geophysical (Magnetic) surveys were carried out in the last 
quarter of 2005 and into the first quarter of 2006. 

A drill program was initiated in January of 2006, with a total of 
13 drill holes completed for 7,365 metres drilled to Decem-
ber 31, 2006. Drilling tested a variety of targets consisting of 
NSAMT, magnetic, biogeochemical, structural and geological 
anomalies.  Though no major veins were intersected valuable 
geological and structural information for exploration programs 
going forward was obtained. Anomalous silver mineralization 
was intersected in hole 06-03 which returned 2.15 metres grad-
ing 40.1 grams per tonne silver. 

MAG also continued to enlarge its land position by claiming 
strategically located properties in 2005 as they became eligible 
for acquisition.  To that end MAG added an additional 12,534 
hectares to its Lagartos NW land package east of the El Saucito 
discovery and West of the Zacatecas District.

The Lagartos Southeast or Zacatecas North block covers the broad 
plain lying between Fresnillo and the historic Zacatecas mining 
district. In 2006, MAG staked all of the open ground surround-
ing Zacatecas and purchased numerous claims over past pro-
ducing veins within the district. This gives MAG the potential 
projections of the E-W trending district veins as well as the San 
Gabriel vein field in the northernmost part of the district. 

 
Work at San Gabriel in 2006 identified a number of significant vein 

structures that appear exposed at a very high level where further 
work is focused.  An 1,800 line kilometre airborne survey is 
expected to be completed in early 2007 and will contribute to 

designing and directing a drill program for the North Zacatecas 
area in mid 2007.The Company had spent a total of $2,197,361 
in exploration costs at Lagartos to December 31, 2006 (2005 
- $399,192).

At Guigui, the 2005 drill program followed up on the intersections 
of extensive alteration, structure and mineralization encountered 
in the 2004 program. (i.e. 131 ppm Ag over 8.30m or 4.2 opt 
Ag over 27 feet). The drill area is located about 1.2km south of 
Grupo Mexico’s operating San Antonio Mine and about 650m 
south of their nearest underground infrastructure. The target 
area is situated within the San Antonio Graben, a prominent 
N-S structural feature that hosts and controls the mineralization 
at the San Antonio Mine.

Hole 07 cut the highest grade silver mineralization intersected to 
date within Guigui at 1.40 metres of 242 grams per tonne silver 
(7.8 ounces).  The best values were associated with members of 
a felsite dike swarm that also produces mineralization in Grupo 
Mexico’s San Antonio Mine at a location 1800 metres farther 
to the north along the same structure.  

The results from Hole 08 indicate that the dikes cut in Holes 06 and 
07 are sourced farther to the west within the Guigui property.  
MAG also drilled a single hole into the upper zones of the East 
Fault of the San Antonio Graben (Hole 09) and cut four narrow 
felsite dikes with anomalous silver values.   

We continue to cut strong indications of silver and base metal 
mineralization in the same structures and intrusions and within 
a broad alteration halo, not unlike the upper reaches of the East 
Camp deposits. This important development leads management 
to contend that these intersections demonstrate that mineraliza-
tion similar to the rich deposits of the San Antonio Mine, north 
of our drill area and East Camp can be traced to the south and 
onto MAG’s Guigui property. 

A contract to fly an eight hundred line kilometre EM and Magnetic 
survey was signed and the survey was completed by the end of 
December 2006. Preliminary results are very encouraging and 
are to be integrated in early 2007 with the substantial data base 
we have accumulated at Guigui. Further work will be designed 
to follow up on this integration leading to a drill plan. The 
Company had spent a total of $1,376,293 in exploration costs 
at Guigui to December 31, 2006 (2005 - $1,265,194).

Cinco de Mayo, located in Chihuahua State, occurs proximal to 
the highly favorable western edge of the Chihuahua trough 
which hosts several large (all greater than 25 million tonnes), 
operating mining districts including Naica, Santa Eulalia and 
Bismarck. Biogeochemical sampling of creosote bush (a.k.a. 
greasewood or gobernadora) along the flanks of Cinco de Mayo 
Ridge has revealed strong linear anomalies in Zn and Cu.  

These results were encouraging enough to justify a 45 line-kilometre 
NSAMT geophysical survey testing historically exploited min-
eralization, geological features identified in nearby outcrop and 
through cover utilizing a biogeochemical survey.  Additional bio-
geochemical sampling, both expanding on the strongest anoma-
lies revealed by the orientation survey and coincident with each 
NSAMT detector point, accompanied the NSAMT survey.   



Results detected a significant electromagnetic anomaly coincident 
with biogeochemical anomalies and consistent with the pro-
posed exploration model. A contract to fly a four hundred and 
fifty line kilometre EM and Magnetic survey was signed and 
the survey was completed by the end December 2006.

Drilling began on this property in the third quarter of 2006, with 
a total of 9 drill holes completed for 3,795 metres drilled to 
December 31, 2006. Six of the nine holes were drilled over 
a strike length of 2.0 kilometres along a very prominent NW 
trending fault zone that cuts strongly folded massive limestone 
and limestone-rich sedimentary rocks.  Structurally controlled 
replacement style massive to semi-massive sulphide mineral-
ization occurring within broad mineralized and altered zones 
(see table page 19) was intercepted in all six of the holes. Min-
eralization is open in all directions. At least trace mineralization 
was encountered in the remaining 3 holes.

Early systematic regional exploration work and the results of this 
first phase drill program clearly show that Cinco de Mayo has 
many geological and mineralogical characteristics in common 
with the largest CRDs in Mexico. Management contends that 
successfully locating completely blind mineralization in initial 
drilling confirms that we are applying the right techniques in 
the right geological setting and that a mineralizing carbonate 
replacement system of significant strength and size may be 
present. 

MAG also claimed approximately 2,500 hectares of open ground 
to the north of its original land package along a major regional 
fault zone revealed through detailed satellite image analysis. The 
Company had spent a total of $1,213,474 in exploration costs at 
Cinco de Mayo to December 31, 2006 (2005 - $135,787).

At Adargas a total of 4 line kilometres of NSAMT geophysics was 
run in late 2005 to test a strong conductive anomaly revealed 
by a Down-Hole UTM geophysical survey run in MAG’s 
AD04-01 drill hole. The survey confirmed the presence of a 
conductive body below the level of current drilling. Manage-
ment feels that the deeper targets, modeled on treating the 
surface mineralization as leakages from a larger system trapped 
beneath a relatively impermeable unit remain untested and vi-
able targets. Joint venture possibilities are being explored in 
2007 for the Adargas property. The Company had spent a total 
of $314,778 in exploration costs at Adargas to December 31, 
2006 (2005 - $307,778).

At Sierra de Ramirez, located in Durango State, this 15,000 hect-
are property has seen little modern exploration.  A historical 
producer of high grade silver and base metals, this district is 
emerging for MAG Silver as a large scale CRD target.  Metal 
zoning studies have identified three mineralized zones where 
work is presently underway to better define these zones through 
mapping, geochemical sampling in tandem with structural and 
alteration studies. This resulted in the recognition that ac-
quisition of additional land is desirable before higher profile 
exploration work can begin.  This acquisition was underway 
by period’s end.

  In order to make up for lost time due to weather and access delays 
in the past we were able to renegotiate the terms of our option 
agreement with Minera Rio Tinto to earn 100% interest in the 

property. In effect we were able to roll the agreement back two 
years and continue with the payment schedule as outlined in the 
original agreement. This allowed us the time to fly an airborne 
survey and conduct the appropriate follow up programs. A 
contract to fly an eleven hundred and twenty line kilometre EM 
and Magnetic survey was signed and the survey was completed 
by mid February 2007. Drilling could begin by late 2007. The 
Company had spent a total of $149,130 in exploration costs at 
Sierra de Ramirez to December 31, 2006 (2005 - $88,537).

All of the costs incurred on property acquisition and exploration to 
date have been deferred. There were no mineral properties writ-
ten down during the year or in 2004 or 2005. A complete table of 
mineral property costs can be found in Note 7 of the Company’s 
Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2006.

e)	 Administration	Expenses

General and administrative expenses for the year totaled $4,075,160 
(2005 - $1,891,270), before interest income of $208,593 (2005 
- $80,432). Shareholder relations expense, web site hosting 
and maintenance, investor calls, mail outs, printing and news 
releases totaled $288,687 (2005 - $109,803). Management and 
consulting fees to December 31, 2006 totaled $485,993 (2005 
- $415,117). Office and telephone totaled $365,880 (2005 
- $252,257). Stock compensation expense, a non-cash item, 
amounted to $2,341,159 for the year (2005 - $611,353). 

During the year ended December 31, 2006 legal fees amounted to 
$89,810 (2005 - $167,005), and accounting and audit expenses 
totaled $211,168 (2005 - $127,959). Legal opinions and con-
tract preparation for property acquisitions and joint ventures 
in 2005 led to higher legal expenses.  Accounting and audit 
expenses related to normal course of business audit and ac-
counting work in Canada and Mexico as well as the preparation 
of the Company’s United States Securities and Exchange Com-
mission (“SEC”) Registration (Form 20-F) in 2005 and 2006.

During the year ended December 31, 2006 the Company paid stock 
exchange, filing fees and transfer agent fees of $48,782 (2005 
- $42,254). A foreign exchange loss of $12,479 (2005 – $29,506 
gain) was incurred during the year, which is attributed to the 
fluctuations in the US dollar and Mexican pesos, which the Com-
pany uses to pay for acquisition and exploration expenditures 
through the Company’s Mexican subsidiary Minera Los Lagar-
tos. Travel, lodging and related expenses for the management of 
the Company amounted to $212,168 (2005 - $169,993). Such 
costs are incurred for corporate, property and exploration related 
travel and for attendance at trade shows and conferences.

f)	 Related	Party	Transactions

For the year ended December 31, 2006 the Company’s president 
received $139,500 in compensation for management services 
(2005 - $149,900).

For the year ended December 31, 2006 a company controlled by an 
officer of the Company received $113,520 in compensation for 
consulting services (2005 - $125,950).

The Company is party to a Field Services Agreement, whereby it has 
contracted exploration services in Mexico with MINERA CAS-
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CABEL S.A. de C.V. (“Cascabel”) and IMDEX Inc. (“Imdex”).  
As of January 2006, these companies have a common director 
with the Company.  During the year ended December 31, 2006 
the Company accrued or paid Cascabel and IMDEX consulting, 
administration and travel fees totaling $141,154 and exploration 
costs totaling $1,049,611 under the Field Services Agreement.

During the year ended December 31, 2003, the Company entered 
into an office services agreement with Platinum Group Metals 
Ltd. (“PTM”), a company with common directors and a com-
mon officer. During the year ended December 31, 2006 the 
Company accrued or paid PTM $138,081 under the common 
service agreement (2005 - $133,329).

During the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company entered 
into an office lease agreement with Anthem Works Ltd. (“An-
them”), a company with a common director.  During the period 
ended December 31, 2006 the Company accrued or paid Anthem 
$62,333 under the office lease agreement (2005 - $62,333).

These transactions are in the normal course of business and are 
measured at the exchange amount which is the consideration 
established and agreed to by the noted parties.

g)	 Shareholder	Relations’	Expenses

Shareholder relations expense during the year totaled $288,687 
(2005 - $109,803). Since 2003 the Company has managed its 
shareholder relations as an internal function. Since September 
2005 Contact Financial has been contracted at a rate of $6,000 
per month to provide distribution of the Company’s informa-
tion. The Company attends seminars and conferences related 
to its business and from time to time does visit brokers, market 
analysts and investors who request information about the 
Company’s business.

h)	 Travel	and	Promotion	Expenses

Travel and promotion expenses for the year amounted to $212,168 
(2005 - $169,993). These activities relate to corporate business 
development, the supervision of ongoing exploration operations, 
new property investigations and meetings with potential joint 
venture partners and institutional and sophisticated investors.

i)	 Property	Acquisition	Expenses

Property acquisition expenditures during the year totaled $646,029 
(2005 - $1,581,558) in cash and shares.

During the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company and Minera 
Rio Tinto, S.A. de C.V. amended terms of the Sierra de Ramirez 
option agreement. Under the amended terms, the Company is-
sued Minera Rio Tinto, S.A. de C.V. 20,000 common shares 
of the Company on October 6, 2006 and will make scheduled 
cash payments totalling US$1,300,000 (US$75,000 paid) to 
December 14, 2010, with a final payment of US$650,000 of 
which up to US$500,000 may be paid in the common shares of 
the Company.  Under the amended terms all exploration work 
commitments were also eliminated. To December 31, 2006 the 
Company has incurred a total of $527,645 in acquisition costs 
on the property.

During the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company and an 
individual entered into a “letter of intent” agreement to acquire 
the Sello property. The Company has paid $28,143 on signing 
the letter of intent, and is doing due diligence to make a deal 
for the property.

During the year ended December 31, 2006 the Company has 
acquired more exploration concession on mining claims (the 
Lagartos properties) on the Fresnillo trend to the northwest and 
southeast of the Juanicipio property. This exploration conces-
sion enables the Company to explore the mining claim covered 
by the concession to December 2009, subject to the Company 
paying any applicable annual tax or other regulatory charges. 
To December 31, 2006 the Company has incurred a total of 
$174,376 in acquisition costs on the property.

During the year ended December 31, 2005, the Company negoti-
ated a termination and sale agreement whereby the Company 
issued the underlying agreement holders a one time final pay-
ment of 750,000 common shares in exchange for a 100% 
interest in the Don Fippi property.  The purchase eliminated all 
remaining work commitments and the remaining payments of 
US$450,000 in cash and 673,822 in shares under the terms of 
the original option agreement. The property will remain subject 
to royalties and certain other terms of the original option agree-
ment. To December 31, 2006 the Company has incurred a total 
of $1,422,672 in acquisition costs on the property.

During the year ended December 31, 2005, the Company negotiated 
a termination and sale agreement whereby the Company issued 
the underlying agreement holders a one time final payment of 
750,000 common shares in exchange for a 100% interest in the 
Guigui property.  The purchase eliminated all remaining work 
commitments and the remaining payments of US$450,000 
in cash and 604,003 in shares under the terms of the original 
option agreement. The property will remain subject to royal-
ties and certain other terms of the original option agreement. 
To December 31, 2006 the Company has incurred a total of 
$1,571,172 in acquisition costs on the property.

During the year ended December 31, 2005, the Company and Minera 
Cascabel, S.A. de C.V. amended terms of the Adargas property 
option agreement. Under the amended terms, half of each of the 
remaining property payments totalling US$775,000 due on or 
before July 26, 2009, may be paid in shares at a deemed price 
per share equal to the average trading price of MAG for 30 cal-
endar days prior to the date of payment. To that end MAG paid 
cash of US$62,500 and issued 30,840 shares (2005 - US$37,500 
and issued 59,830 shares) for the property payment due July 26, 
2006. To December 31, 2006 the Company has incurred a total 
of $432,061 in acquisition costs on the property.

During the year ended December 31, 2005, the Company and Minera 
Cascabel, S.A. de C.V. amended the terms of the Cinco de Mayo 
option agreement. Under the amended  terms, half of each of the 
remaining property payments totalling US$775,000 due on or 
before July 26, 2009, may be paid in shares at a deemed price 
per share equal to the average trading price of MAG for 30 cal-
endar days prior to the date of payment. To that end MAG paid 
cash of US$62,500 and issued 30,840 shares (2005 - US$37,500 
and issued 59,830 shares) for the property payment due July 26, 



2006. To December 31, 2006 the Company has incurred a total 
of $428,610 in acquisition costs on the property.

The sum of all payments required to maintain all of the Company’s 
mineral rights are less than its currently available working 
capital. The Company evaluates its property interests on an 
ongoing basis and intends to abandon properties that fail to 
remain prospective. The Company is confident that it will be 
able to meet its earn-in obligations on those properties which 
management considers being of merit. 

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company’s accounting policies are set out in Note 2 of its Con-
solidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 
31, 2006. 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ca-
nadian GAAP requires Management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and li-
abilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of 
the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues 
and expenditures during the reporting period.  Management 
has identified (i) mineral property acquisition and exploration 
deferred costs (ii) provision for reclamation and closure, (iii) 
future income tax provision and (iv) stock based compensation 
as the main estimates for the following discussion.  Please refer 
to Note 2 of the Company’s consolidated financial statements 
for a description of all of the significant accounting policies.  

Under Canadian GAAP, the Company deferred all costs relating to 
the acquisition and exploration of its mineral properties. Any 
revenues received from such properties are credited against the 
costs of the property. When commercial production commences 
on any of the Company’s properties, any previously capitalized 
costs would be charged to operations using a unit-of-production 
method. The Company regularly reviews the carrying values of 
its properties to assess their recoverability and when the carry-
ing value of a property exceeds the estimated net recoverable 
amount, provision is made for impairment in value. 

The existence of uncertainties during the exploration stage and 
the lack of definitive empirical evidence with respect to the 
feasibility of successful commercial development of any 
exploration property does create measurement uncertainty 
concerning the estimate of the amount of impairment to the 
value of any mineral property. The Company relies on its own 
or independent estimates of further geological prospects of a 
particular property and also considers the likely proceeds from 
a sale or assignment of the rights before determining whether 
or not impairment in value has occurred.

Reclamation and closure costs have been estimated based on the 
Company’s interpretation of current regulatory requirements, 
however changes in regulatory requirements and new informa-
tion may result in revisions to estimates.  The Company rec-
ognizes the fair value of liabilities for reclamation and closure 
costs in the period in which they are incurred.  A corresponding 
increase to the carrying amount of the related assets is generally 
recorded and depreciated over the life of the asset.

The future income tax provision is based on the liability method.  
Future taxes arise from the recognition of the tax consequences 
of temporary differences by applying enacted or substantively 
enacted tax rates applicable to future years to differences be-
tween the financial statement carrying amounts and the tax 
bases of certain assets and liabilities.  The Company records a 
valuation allowance against any portion of those future income 
tax assets that it believes will, more likely than not, fail to be 
realized.

For its 2004 fiscal year, MAG Silver adopted CICA Handbook Sec-
tion 3870 – Stock-Based Compensation and other Stock-Based 
Payments, which requires the fair value method of accounting 
for stock options.  Under this method, MAG Silver is required 
to recognize a charge to the income statement based on an 
option-pricing model based on the following assumption –no 
dividends were paid, a weighted average volatility of the Com-
pany’s share price of 86 per cent, a weighted average annual 
risk free rate of 4.04 per cent and an expected life of 3 years.  
The resulting weighted average option related to an expense for 
stock options in 2006 of $2,341,159 (2005 - $611,353).  

4. LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Company issued a total of 1,736,962 (2005 – 10,362,110) com-
mon shares during the year. Of these 1,651,919 shares (2005 
– 8,707,431) were issued for cash proceeds of $2,219,382 (2005 
- $7,840,988). A further 85,043 shares (2005 – 1,654,679) were 
issued for mineral properties for a value of $204,431 (2005 
- $1,327,822). Cash proceeds are to be spent on mineral property 
acquisitions, exploration and development as well as for gen-
eral working capital purposes. The Company’s primary source of 
capital has been from the sale of equity. At December 31, 2006 the 
Company had cash and cash equivalents on hand of $3,506,930 
compared to cash and cash equivalents of $7,560,193 at Decem-
ber 31, 2005. The primary use of cash during the year was for 
acquisition and exploration expenditures, being approximately 
$4,437,059 (2005 - $1,683,043), management and consulting fees 
of $485,993 (2005 - $415,117) and other general and administra-
tive expenses of $1,231,728 (2005 - $846,443). The Company had 
$3,585,789 in working capital as at December 31, 2006 compared 
to $7,320,292 at December 31, 2005. 

Current liabilities of the Company at December 31, 2006 amounted 
to $350,368 (2005 - $393,621) mostly being attributable to ac-
crued exploration expenses. 

The Company currently has sufficient working capital to maintain 
all of its properties for the next eight months, in management’s 
opinion; the Company is able to meet its ongoing current ob-
ligations as they become due. Based on exploration results the 
Company will select certain properties to complete purchase 
arrangements on. The Company expects to raise equity capital 
as it is needed.  However, there is no assurance that additional 
funding will be available to the Company and it may again be-
come dependent upon the efforts and resources of its directors 
and officers for future working capital. Management refers the 
reader to the contents of the Audited Financial Statements for 
the year ended December 31, 2006, as well as the subsequent 
events section. 
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In the normal course of business the Company enters into transac-
tions for the purchase of supplies and services denominated 
in Mexican Pesos. The Company also has cash and certain 
liabilities denominated in United States dollars. As a result, the 
Company is subject to foreign exchange risk from fluctuations 
in foreign exchange rates.

The following Table discloses the contractual obligations of the 
Company for optional mineral property acquisition payments, 
optional exploration work and committed lease obligations for 
office rent and equipment:

Option	Payments	and		
Exploration	Expenditures

	
Total

	
Less	than	1	year

	
1-3	Years

	
3-5	Years

	
More	than	5	years

Sierra Ramirez Property $1,225,000 $125,000 $425,000 $675,000 Nil

Adargas Property $1,519,000 $419,000 $1,100,000 Nil Nil

Cinco de Mayo Property $775,000 $175,000 $600,000 Nil Nil

Total	(US	$) $3,519,000 $719,000 $2,125,000 $675,000 Nil

Office Lease (Cdn $) $46,750 $46,750 Nil Nil Nil

Other Items

The Company is unaware of any undisclosed liabilities or legal 
actions against the Company and the Company has no legal ac-
tions or cause against any third party at this time. The Company 
is unaware of any condition of default under any debt, regula-
tory, exchange related or other contractual obligations.

5. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company maintains a set of disclosure controls and procedures 
designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed 
in filings made pursuant to Multilateral Instrument 52-109 is 
recorded, processed, summarized and reported in the manner 
specified by the relevant securities laws applicable to the Com-
pany.  The consolidated Company operates in both Canada and 
Mexico and work is ongoing to improve and modernize these 
controls and to ensure that they remain consistently applied in 
both jurisdictions.  The Chief Executive Officer and the Chief 
Financial Officer have evaluated the Company’s disclosure 
control procedures as of December 31, 2006 through inquiry, 
review, and testing, as well as by drawing upon their own 
relevant experience.  The Company retained an independent 
third party specialist in 2006 to assist in the assessment of its 
disclosure control procedures.  The Chief Executive Officer and 
the Chief Financial Officer have concluded that the Company’s 
disclosure control procedures are effective.  Management is 
also developing and implementing a plan to address disclosure 
controls and procedures on a forward looking basis as the Com-
pany continues to grow.

The Company also maintains a system of internal controls over fi-
nancial reporting, as defined by Multilateral Instrument 52-109, 
Certification of Disclosure in Issuers’ Annual and Interim Filings 
in order to provide reasonable assurance that assets are safe-
guarded and financial information is accurate and reliable and 
in accordance with Canadian GAAP.  The Company retained an 
independent third party specialist in 2006 to assist in the assess-
ment of its internal control procedures.  The Board of Directors 
approves the financial statements and ensures that management 
discharges its financial responsibilities. The Board’s review is 
accomplished principally through the audit committee, which 
is composed of independent non-executive directors. The audit 

committee meets periodically with management and auditors  
to review financial reporting and control matters. The Board 
of Directors has also appointed a compensation committee 
composed of non-executive directors whose recommendations 
are followed with regard to executive compensation. From time 
to time the board may also form special sub-committees, which 
must investigate and report to the Board on specific topics.

There have been no changes in internal control over financial re-
porting during the quarter ended December 31, 2006 that have 
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, 
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

6. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS Subsequent to December 31, 2006:

(a) The Company issued 247,500 common shares at $1.35 on the 
exercise of warrants for proceeds of $334,125; and issued 
26,000 common shares at an average price of $0.84 on the 
exercise of options for proceeds of $21,760;

(b) On January 23, 2007 the Company granted 85,000 stock options 
to consultants of the Company at a price of $7.56 per share for 
a term of five years.

(c) On February 14, 2007 the Company closed a brokered private 
placement for 2,550,000 units at $7.25 a unit for gross proceeds 
of $18,487,500. Each unit is comprised of one common share and 
one-half of one common share purchase warrant, with each whole 
warrant exercisable for one common share at a price of $10.00 
for a period of 12 months until February 14, 2008. The Company 
paid 6.0% cash commission to the underwriters on this placement 
aggregating $1,109,250. Legal costs and syndicate expenses have 
been estimated at $95,000 as an additional cost to the Company.

(d) On February 14, 2007 the Company closed a non-brokered pri-
vate placement for 195,000 units, while a further 15,000 units 
were closed February 15, 2007 for a total of 210,000 at $7.25 a 
unit for gross proceeds of $1,522,500. Each unit is comprised of 
one common share and one-half of one common share purchase 
warrant, with each whole warrant exercisable for one common 
share at a price of $10.00 for a period of 12 months until Febru-
ary 14 and 15, 2008. The Company paid a 6.0% finder’s fee on 
this placement comprised of $91,350 in cash.

Tabular Disclosure of Contractual Obligations (Property expenditures in U.S. dollars, as per agreement)



Independent audItors’ report

to the shareholders of
MaG silver Corp
(an exploration stage company)

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of MaG silver Corp (an exploration stage company) as at december 31, 2006 and 2005 and 
the consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the years in the three year period ended December 
31, 2006 and the cumulative period from April 21, 1999 to December 31, 2006.  These financial statements are the responsibility of the 
Company’s management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards and the standards of the Public Company Accounting 
Oversight Board (United States).  These standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement.  an audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as at Decem-
ber 31, 2006 and 2005 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the three year period ended December 31, 2006 
and the cumulative period from April 21,1999 to December 31, 2006 in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting.  Our audit 
included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the cir-
cumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.  
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. 

Independent registered Chartered accountants
February 23, 2007

CoMMents by audItors on Canada - unIted states oF aMerICa reportInG dIFFerenCes

The standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) require the addition of an explanatory paragraph when 
the financial statements are affected by conditions and events that cast substantial doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, such as those described in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.  Although we conducted our audits in accordance with 
both Canadian generally accepted auditing standards and the standards of the public Company accounting oversight board (united states), 
our report to the Shareholders dated February 23, 2007 is expressed in accordance with Canadian reporting standards which do not permit a 
reference to such conditions and events in the auditors’ report when these are adequately disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.

The standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) require the addition of an explanatory paragraph (follow-
ing the opinion paragraph) when there are changes in accounting principles that have a material effect on the comparability of the Company’s 
consolidated financial statements, such as the change described in Note 12 (b) to the consolidated financial statements.  Our report to the 
shareholders, dated February 23, 2007, is expressed in accordance with Canadian reporting standards which do not require a reference to such 
changes in accounting principles in the auditors’ report when the change is properly accounted for and adequately disclosed in the consolidated 
financial statements.

Independent registered Chartered accountants
February 23, 2007
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Consolidated Balance Sheets   
December 31

ASSETS 2006 2005

Current 

   Cash and cash equivalents  $       3,506,930  $       7,560,193 

   amounts receivable (note 11)             273,035             105,071 

   Interest receivable             115,227               26,412 

   prepaid expenses               40,965               22,237 

totaL Current assets          3,936,157          7,713,913 

eQuIpMent and LeaseHoLds (note 3)       31,332    39,914 

MIneraL rIGHts (note 7)          5,504,137          4,858,108 

deFerred eXpLoratIon Costs (note 7) 9,458,932          5,463,471

totaL assets  $     18,930,558  $     18,075,406 

LIABILITIES 

Current 

   accounts payable and accrued liabilities  $         350,368 $         393,621

totaL LIabILItIes             350,368             393,621 

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 

share capital (note 4) 

   Authorized - 1,000,000,000 common shares, without par value

Issued and outstanding at december 31, 2006 - 
   37,928,610 common shares (december 31, 2005 - 36,191,648)

 
23,433,942

 
20,812,185

Contributed surplus (note 5)          3,059,194                    915,979 

Deficit       (7,912,946)        (4,046,379)

totaL sHareHoLders’ eQuIty         18,580,190         17,681,785 

totaL LIabILItIes and sHareHoLders’ eQuIty  $     18,930,558 $     18,075,406

ContInuInG operatIons (note 1)

on beHaLF oF tHe board

 

director

 

director

see aCCoMpanyInG notes to tHe ConsoLIdated FInanCIaL stateMents.



Consolidated statement of operations 

Year ended
December 31,

2006

Year ended
December 31,

2005

Year ended
December 31,

2004

Cumulative  
amount from April 

21, 1999 to
December 31,

2006

eXpenses 

accounting and audit  $      211,168  $      127,959  $    126,837  $      657,250 

amortization           16,820           18,357          11,563           48,601 

bank charges and interest             2,214             1,827            3,021           23,347 

Filing and transfer agent fees           48,782           42,254           1,163         227,368 

Foreign exchange gain (loss)           12,479         (29,506)          48,349           76,809 

Legal           89,810         167,005          71,493         521,960 

Management and consulting fees         485,993         415,117        173,444       1,258,466 

property investigation expense                 -               4,851                 -               4,851 

shareholder relations         288,687         109,803          81,277         541,126 

stock compensation expense       2,341,159         611,353                 -         3,027,820 

Telephone and office         365,880         252,257         90,910         913,482 

travel         212,168         169,993          52,839         565,732 

Write-off of advances                 -                   -                   -           252,420 

Write-off of computer software                 -                   -                   -     2,673 

       4,075,160       1,891,270        800,896       8,121,905 

Loss beFore tHe FoLLoWInG (4,075,160) (1,891,270) (800,896) (8,121,905)

Interest InCoMe         208,593           80,432          66,999         457,087 

net Loss For tHe perIod  $(3,866,567)  $(1,810,838)  $ (733,897)  $(7,664,818)

basIC and dILuted 

Loss per sHare  $         (0.10)  $         (0.06)  $       (0.03)  

WeIGHted aVeraGe nuMber 

oF sHares outstandInG     37,055,631     28,353,901   24,578,037  
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Common shares
without par value

Shares 
allotted but

not issued

Special warrants Contributed 
Surplus

Deficit 
accumulated 

during the 
exploration 

stage

Total 
sharehold-
ers’ equityShares Amount Number Amount

Issued for cash 1,500,000  $    150,000  $         -                 -    $         -    $            -    $                -    $     150,000 

net loss                 -                      -               -                 -               -                  -    (4,279)  (4,279)

Balance, October 31, 1999 1,500,000         150,000             -                 -               -                  -    (4,279) 145,721 

net loss                 -                      -               -                 -               -                  -    (3,787)  (3,787)

Balance, December 31, 1999 1,500,000 150,000             -                 -               -                  -    (8,066) 141,934 

Issued for cash 1,500,000 240,222             -                 -               -                  -                      -   240,222 

net loss                 -                      -               -                 -               -                  -    (5,641)  (5,641)

Balance, December 31, 2000 3,000,000 390,222             -                 -               -                  -    (13,707) 376,515 

net loss                 -                      -               -                 -               -                  -    (279,639)  (279,639)

balance, december 31, 2001 3,000,000 390,222             -                 -               -                  -    (293,346) 96,876 

Issued for cash             -   2,400,000     375,000                -                      -   375,000 

net loss                 -                      -               -                 -               -                  -    (122,631)  (122,631)

Balance, December 31, 2002 3,000,000 390,222             -   2,400,000     375,000                -    (415,977) 349,245 

Issued for cash 11,500,000 5,109,766             -                 -               -                  -                      -   5,109,766 

Conversion of special warrants 2,400,000 375,000             -   (2,400,000)  (375,000)                -                      -                      -   

agent’s administration shares           10,000 5,000             -                 -               -                  -                      -   5,000 

Finders’ fee shares         500,000 250,000             -                 -               -                  -                      -   250,000 

Issued to obtain mineral property 

option rights         200,000 100,000             -                 -               -                  -                      -   100,000 

Issued on acquisition of Lexington         200,000 180,000             -                 -               -                  -                      -   180,000 

Warrants exercised 5,183,995 3,068,996             -                 -               -                  -                      -   3,068,996 

stock options exercised         100,000 26,000             -                 -               -                  -                      -   26,000 

stock options granted to consultants                 -                      -               -                 -               -   75,308                    -   75,308 

net loss                 -                      -               -                 -               -                  -    (837,539)  (837,539)

Balance, December 31, 2003 23,093,995 9,504,984             -                 -               -   75,308  (1,253,516) 8,326,776 

Cumulative effect of change in

accounting policy (note 2 (j))                 -                      -               -                 -               -   248,128  (248,128)                    -   

Issued to obtain mineral property  

option rights 1,358,793 1,578,752             -                 -               -                  -                      -   1,578,752 

Warrants exercised 1,236,750 480,562             -                 -               -                  -                      -   480,562 

stock options exercised         140,000 68,070             -                 -               -    (17,270)                    -   50,800 

shares allotted to acquire mineral 

property option rights                 -                      -          9,467               -               -                  -                      -   9,467 

net loss                 -                      -               -                 -               -                  -    (733,897)  (733,897)

Balance, December 31, 2004 25,829,538 11,632,368        9,467               -               -   306,166  (2,235,541) 9,712,460 

Issued for cash (note 4 (a)) 7,201,176 6,771,672             -                 -               -                  -                      -   6,771,672 

Issued to obtain mineral property  

option rights 1,654,679 1,337,289       (9,467)               -               -                  -                      -   1,327,822 

Warrants exercised 1,400,755 1,046,566             -                 -               -                  -                      -   1,046,566 

stock options exercised         105,500 24,290             -                 -               -    (1,540)                    -   22,750 

stock options granted                 -                      -               -                 -               -   611,353                    -   611,353 

net loss                 -                      -               -                 -               -                  -    (1,810,838)  (1,810,838)

Balance, December 31, 2005 36,191,648 $20,812,185  $         -                 -    $         -    $   915,979  $(4,046,379)  $17,681,785 

Issued for cash (note 4 (a))         245,716 577,433             -                 -               -                  -                      -   577,433 

Issued to obtain mineral property  

option rights           85,043 204,431             -                 -               -                  -                      -   204,431 

Warrants exercised         944,503 1,275,079             -                 -               -                  -                      -   1,275,079 

stock options exercised         461,700 564,814             -                 -               -    (197,944)                    -   366,870 

stock options granted                 -                      -               -                 -               -   2,341,159                    -   2,341,159 

net loss                 -                      -               -                 -               -                  -    (3,866,567)  (3,866,567)

Balance, December 31, 2006 37,928,610  $23,433,942  $         -                 -    $         -    $3,059,194  $(7,912,946)  $18,580,190 

Consolidated 
Statements of 
Shareholders’ 
Equity

see aCCoMpanyInG notes to tHe ConsoLIdated FInanCIaL stateMents.



Year ended 
December 31, 

 2006

Year ended  
December 31, 

 2005

Year ended 
 December 31, 

2004

Cumulative  amount 
from April 21, 1999 to  

December 31, 2006

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Loss for the period  $(3,866,567)  $(1,810,838)  $   (733,897)  $(7,664,818)

Items not involving cash: 

Write-off of computer software                 -                   -                   -               2,673 

Write-off of advances                 -                   -                   -           252,420 

amortization           16,820           18,357           11,563           48,601 

non-cash compensation expense       2,341,159         611,353                 -         3,027,820 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities 

accounts receivable  (167,963)         418,077  (261,275)  (273,034)

Interest receivable  (88,815)           (4,218)           41,933  (115,227)

prepaid expenses  (18,729)           (9,387)           (4,100)  (40,966)

 accounts payable and accrued liabilities  (43,253)         329,412  (146,181)         350,368 

  (1,827,348)  (447,244)  (1,091,957)  (4,412,163)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

 purchase of equipment and leasehold improvements (8,238) (16,868) (18,592) (82,606)

advances to Minera Los Lagartos, s.a.de C.V.                 -                   -                   -    (113,139)

acquisition of Minera Los Lagartos, s.a. de C.V.                 -                   -                   -             (7,500)

acquisition of Lexington Capital Group  Inc.                 -                   -                   -    (350,000)

Mineral rights  (441,598)       (253,736)  (373,653)  (1,349,869)

deferred exploration costs  (3,995,461)  (1,429,307)  (1,976,622)  (9,492,089)

other                 -                   -                   -    (252,420)

  (4,445,297)  (1,699,911)  (2,368,867)  (11,647,623)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Issue of share capital       2,219,382       7,840,988         531,362     19,191,716 

Issue of special warrants                 -                   -                   -           375,000 

       2,219,382       7,840,988         531,362     19,566,716 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH  (4,053,263)       5,693,833  (2,929,462)       3,506,930 

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF PERIOD  7,560,193  1,866,360    4,795,822 

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS, END OF PERIOD (Note 2 (d))  $   3,506,930  $   7,560,193  $   1,866,360  $   3,506,930 

Interest paid  $                 -    $                 -    $                 -    $        12,500 

Non-cash investing and financing activities:

Issue of shares in connection with acquisition 

of Minera Los Lagartos, s.a. de C.V.  $                 -    $                -    $                -    $      250,000 

Issue of shares in exchange for mineral  property option rights  $      204,431  $   1,337,289  $   1,578,752  $   3,220,472 

Issue of shares in connection with acquisition

of Lexington Capital Group Inc.  $                 -    $                 -    $                  -    $      180,000 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1. CONTINUING OPERATIONS 
The Company was incorporated under the Company Act (British Columbia) on April 21, 1999 and its shares were listed on the TSX Venture 
exchange on april 21, 2000.

The Company is an exploration company conducting work on mineral properties it has staked or acquired by way of option agreement 
principally in Mexico. The Company has not yet determined whether the properties on which it is conducting exploration contain any ore 
reserves that are economically recoverable. the Company defers all acquisition, exploration and development costs related to the properties 
on which it is conducting exploration. The recoverability of these amounts is dependent upon the existence of economically recoverable 
reserves, the ability of the Company to obtain the necessary financing to complete the development of the interests, and future profitable 
production, or alternatively, upon the Company’s ability to dispose of its interests on a profitable basis.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles applicable to a 
going concern, which assume that the Company will realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business for the 
foreseeable future. The Company has incurred losses from inception and does not currently have the financial resources to sustain operations 
in the long-term. The Company’s ability to continue as a going concern is dependent upon its ability in the future to achieve profitable opera-
tions and, in the meantime, to obtain the necessary financing to meet its obligations and repay its liabilities when they become due. External 
financing, predominantly by the issuance of equity to the public, will be sought to finance the operations of the Company.

Although the Company has taken steps to verify title to the properties on which it is conducting exploration and in which it has an interest, in 
accordance with industry standards for the current stage of exploration of such properties, these procedures do not guarantee the Company’s 
title. Property title may be subject to unregistered prior agreements and non-compliance with regulatory requirements.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles (“Canadian GAAP”) 
and include the following significant policies outlined below. 

(a) principles of consolidation

The financial statements of entities which are controlled by the Company through voting equity interests, referred to as subsidiaries, are 
consolidated.  Entities which are jointly controlled, referred to as joint ventures, are proportionately consolidated.  Variable interest entities 
(“VIEs”), which include, but are not limited to, special purpose entities, trusts, partnerships, and other legal structures, as defined by the 
Accounting Standards Board in Accounting Guideline (“AcG”) 15, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities (“AcG 15”), are entities in 
which equity investors do not have the characteristics of a “controlling financial interest” or there is not sufficient equity at risk for the entity 
to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support.  VIEs are subject to consolidation by the primary beneficiary who 
will absorb the majority of the entities’ expected losses and/or expected residual returns.  The Company does not believe that it has any VIEs 
subject to consolidation.  All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated upon consolidation.  The principal 
subsidiary at December 31, 2006 is Minera Los Lagartos, S.A. de C.V. which holds several properties in Mexico.

(b) Measurement uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of 
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reported period. Significant estimates used in 
preparation of these financial statements include estimates of the net realizable value of mineral properties and deferred exploration costs, 
asset retirement obligations, stock based compensation, income tax provisions and contingencies. actual results may differ from those 
estimated.

(c) asset retirement obligations

The Company records the present value of asset retirement obligations including reclamation costs when the obligation is incurred and it is 
recorded as a liability with a corresponding increase in the carrying value of the related mining assets.  The carrying value is amortized over 
the life of the related mining asset on a units-of-production basis commencing with initial commercialization of the asset.  The liability is 
accreted to the actual liability on settlement through charges each period in the statement of operations.
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(d) Financial instruments

the carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, amounts receivable, interest receivable and accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
reflected in the balance sheet approximate their respective fair values. 

Price risk is the risk that the value of the Company’s financial instruments will vary because of fluctuations in foreign exchange rates and the 
degree of volatility of these rates.  Certain of the Company’s accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities are denominated 
in Mexican pesos.  The Company does not use any derivative instruments to reduce its exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates.

(e) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term money market instruments which are readily convertible into cash and have 
original maturities of 90 days or less.

Details of cash and cash equivalents are as follows:

(f) Mineral rights and deferred exploration costs

The Company is in the exploration stage with respect to its activities and accordingly follows the practice of capitalizing all costs relating 
to the acquisition, exploration and development of its mining rights and crediting all revenues received against the cost of the related 
interests. At such time as commercial production commences, these costs will be charged to operations on a units-of-production method 
based on proven and probable reserves. the carrying values related to abandoned interests are charged to operations at the time of any 
abandonment.

Mineral rights include costs to acquire options to acquire interests in unproven mineral properties.

deferred exploration costs include direct exploration costs incurred by the Company in its effort to determine the existence of economically 
mineable ore including the cost of feasibility studies.

Management reviews the carrying value of mineral rights and deferred exploration costs at least quarterly for evidence of impairment. This 
review is generally made with reference to the timing of exploration work, work programs proposed, exploration results achieved by the 
Company and by others in the related area of interest, and an assessment of the likely results to be achieved from performance of further ex-
ploration. When the results of this review indicate that a condition of impairment exists, the Company estimates the net recoverable amount 
of the deferred exploration costs and related mining rights by reference to the potential for success of further exploration activity and/or the 
likely proceeds to be received from sale or assignment of the rights. When the carrying values of mining rights or deferred exploration costs 
are estimated to exceed their net recoverable amounts, a provision is made for the decline in value.

(g) equipment and leaseholds

Equipment and leaseholds are recorded at cost and are amortized on the declining balance basis at the following annual rates:

    Computer equipment and software 30%
    Field equipment   30%

the leasehold improvements are depreciated on a straight-line basis to amortize the costs over the three year term of the related lease.

(h) Income taxes

Future income taxes relate to the expected future tax consequences of differences between the carrying amount of balance sheet items and 
their corresponding tax values.  Future tax assets, if any, are recognized only to the extent that, in the opinion of management, it is more 
likely than not that the future income tax assets will be realized.  Future income tax assets and liabilities are adjusted for the effects of 
changes in tax laws and rates on the date of enactment or substantive enactment.

Dec. 31, 2006 Dec. 31, 2005 Dec. 31, 2004

Cash  $       406,930  $     6,210,193  $         66,360 

short-term deposits        3,100,000        1,350,000        1,800,000 

  $     3,506,930  $     7,560,193  $     1,866,360 



2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Foreign exchange translation

The accounts of the Company’s foreign operations are considered to be integrated with the operations of the Company and are translated 
into Canadian dollars as follows:

• monetary assets and liabilities at the rate prevailing at the balance sheet date;
• non-monetary assets and liabilities at historical rates; and
• income and expenses at the average rate in effect during the year.

the resulting translation adjustment is included as a component of foreign exchange (gain) loss on the statement of operations.

(j) Stock-based compensation

effective January 1, 2004, the Company adopted the amended recommendations of the CICa Handbook section 3870, stock-based Com-
pensation and Other Stock-based Payments.  Under the amended standards of this Section, the fair value of all stock-based awards granted 
are estimated using the black-scholes model and are recorded in operations over their vesting periods.  the compensation cost related to 
stock options granted after January 1, 2004 is recorded in operations.

previously, the Company provided note disclosure of pro forma net earnings and pro forma earnings per share as if the fair value based 
method had been used to account for share purchase options granted to employees, directors and officers after January 1, 2002.  The amended 
recommendations have been applied retroactively from January 1, 2002 without restatement of prior periods.  As a result, as of January 1, 
2004, the deficit was increased by $248,128, and contributed surplus was increased by $248,128.

the total compensation expense recognized in the statement of operations for share purchase options granted during 2006 amount to $2,341,159 
(2005 - $611,353). please refer to note 4 (b) for a summary of stock options granted in the current year and the related valuation assumptions.

For the year ended December 31, 2004, no stock options were issued, resulting in no stock-based compensation expense. 

(k) earnings (loss) per common share

Basic earnings (loss) per share calculations are based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding.

the Company uses the treasury stock method for the calculation of diluted earnings per share. diluted earnings per share are computed using 
the weighted average number of common and common equivalent shares outstanding during the year. Common equivalent shares consist 
of the incremental common shares upon the assumed exercise of stock options and warrants, but are excluded from the computation if their 
effect is anti-dilutive.

potentially dilutive securities totalling 5,993,287 for the period ended december 31, 2006 (3,352,800 and 2,640,487 shares arising from 
outstanding and exercisable stock options and share purchase warrants, respectively) and 5,739,490 shares for the year ended December 31, 
2005 (2,154,500 and 3,584,990 shares arising from outstanding exercisable stock options and share purchase warrants, respectively) were 
not included as their effect would be anti-dilutive.

(l) Comparative figures

Certain of the prior years’ comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the classifications used in 2006.

3. FIXED ASSETS AND LEASEHOLDS
December 31,2006 December 31,2005

Cost accumulated depreciation net book value net book value

Computer equipment 

and software  $       30,127  $       15,750  $       14,377  $       12,300 

Field equipment           34,806           21,601           13,205           18,864 

Leasehold improvements           15,000           11,250            3,750            8,750 

  $       79,933  $       48,601  $       31,332  $       39,914 



Notes to the consolidated financial statements  page  41
MAG Silver corp

4. SHARE CAPITAL
 
(a) Issued and outstanding

At December 31, 2006 there were 37,928,610 shares outstanding.

During the year ended December 31, 2006 the Company issued 85,043 common shares in connection with the acquisition of mineral proper-
ties at a fair value of $204,431. During the year 944,503 share purchase warrants were exercised for proceeds of $1,275,079 and 461,700 
stock options were exercised for cash proceeds of $366,870.

On March 2, 2006 the Company closed a private placement subscribed to by Industrias Peñoles S.A. de C.V. (“Peñoles”) which consisted of 
245,716 common shares of MaG silver Corp. at $2.35. this equates to an investment of $577,433 (us$500,000). see note 7 (a)(v).

on december 22, 2005, the Company raised gross proceeds of $6,494,749 from the sale of 6,494,749 units at a price of $1.00 per unit. each 
unit consisted of one common share and one-half of one share purchase warrant, with each whole warrant entitling the holder to purchase one 
share at a price of $1.35 per share for a period of 18 months until June 21, 2007. The Agents were granted warrants to purchase up to 295,190 
shares of the Company at a price of $1.35 in partial payment of services rendered in connection with their portion of the financing. The 
commission paid to the Agents was $295,190, equal to 7% of the gross proceeds of the Offering, comprising of $210,340 in cash and $84,850 
in units of the offering.  Each unit consisted of one common share and one-half of one share purchase warrant.  Corporate finance fees, legal 
fees, TSX fees and related expenditures totalled $113,802. The net proceeds to the Company from the financing were $6,170,607.

On June 29, 2005, the Company issued 750,000 shares with a value of $607,500 to the former option holder of the Don Fippi property to 
complete the acquisition of the property.  see note 7 (b).

On June 29, 2005, the Company issued 750,000 shares with a value of $607,500 to the former option holder of the Guigui property to 
complete the acquisition of the property.  see note 7 (c).

On May 2, 2005 the Company closed the private placement subscribed to by Industrias Peñoles S.A. de C.V. (“Peñoles”) which consisted of 
621,577 common shares of MaG silver Corp. at $0.967. this equates to an investment of $601,065 (us$500,000). see note 7 (a)(v).

(b) Stock options

The Company has entered into Incentive Stock Option Agreements (“Agreements”) with directors, officers and employees. The maximum 
number of stock options which may be granted is limited to 10% of the issued and outstanding shares.

The following table summarizes options outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2006:

Exercise  
price

Number outstanding and  
exercisable at December 31, 2006

Weighted average remaining  
contractual life (years)

Weighted average 
 exercise prices

 $            0.50                394,500                   1.29  $           0.50 

0.70                220,000                   1.36               0.70 

0.75                  53,000                   3.60               0.75 

1.00                110,000                   0.25 1.00 

1.02                  25,000                   3.95 1.02 

1.06                878,000                   3.05 1.06 

1.14                  37,500                   3.76 1.14 

1.55                   10,800                   4.03 1.55 

3.00                 650,000                   4.10 3.00 

3.56                   15,000                   4.22 3.56 

4.04                 199,000                   4.25 4.04 

2.00                  50,000                   4.46 2.00 

2.46                 145,000                   4.56 2.46 

3.12                   25,000                   4.67 3.12 

5.36                540,000                   4.95 5.36 

               3,352,800                   3.35  $           2.31 



4. SHARE CAPITAL
 (Continued)

at the date the agreements are entered into, the exercise price of each option is set at the fair value of the common shares at the date of grant.  
The following table summarizes the Company’s options:

during the current year the Company granted 1,670,000 stock options, and later cancelled 10,000 of these, (december 31, 2005 – 1,240,000 
and later cancelled 10,000 of these). the Company has recorded $2,341,159 (2005 - $611,353) of compensation expense relating to stock 
options vested to employees and consultants in the year ended december 31, 2006.

For the year ended December 31, 2006, stock-based compensation expense was determined using an option pricing model assuming no 
dividends are to be paid, a weighted average volatility of the Company’s share price of 86%, an annual risk free interest rate of 4.04% and 
expected lives of three years.  

For the year ended December 31, 2005, stock-based compensation expense was determined using an option pricing model assuming no 
dividends are to be paid, a weighted average volatility of the Company’s share price of 80%, an annual risk free interest rate of 3.5% and 
expected lives of three years.  

(c) Share purchase warrants

The following table summarizes information about the warrants outstanding at December 31, 2006:

(d) Shares held in escrow 

At the end of the year there are no shares held in escrow. All remaining escrow shares have been released during the year ended December 
31, 2006. At April 22, 2006, the final 45,000 of the of the originally escrowed common shares issued in connection with the finders fee and 
225,000 of the original 1,500,000 common shares issued to directors and officers of the company were released. 

Period ended
December 31, 2006

Weighted average
exercise price

Year ended
December 31, 2005

Weighted average
exercise price

balance outstanding, 

beginning of year     2,154,500  $         0.84       1,030,000  $         0.54 

activity during the year

options granted     1,670,000             3.81       1,240,000             1.03 

options cancelled       (10,000)             4.04          (10,000)             1.06 

options exercised      (461,700)             0.79        (105,500)             0.22 

balance outstanding, end of year     3,352,800  $         2.31       2,154,500  $         0.84 

Number
of warrants

Weighted average
exercise price

balance at december 31, 2004          2,429,255                 0.75 

Issued in connection with issuance of common shares          3,584,990                 1.35 

exercised and converted into common shares        (1,400,755)                 0.75 

expired        (1,028,500)                 0.75 

balance at december 31, 2005          3,584,990                 1.35 

exercised and converted into common shares           (944,503)                 1.35 

balance at december 31, 2006          2,640,487  $             1.35 

Exercise price Warrants outstanding Expiry date

 $        1.35           2,640,487  June 21, 2007



Notes to the consolidated financial statements  page  43
MAG Silver corp

5. CONTRIBUTED SURPLUS 
The following table summarizes the Company’s Contributed Surplus:

6. INCOME TAXES
the provision for income taxes reported differs from the amounts computed by applying the cumulative Canadian federal and provincial 
income tax rates to the pre-tax loss due to the following:

The approximate tax effect of each type of temporary difference that gives rise to the Company’s future income tax assets are as follows:

At December 31, 2006, the Company has Canadian non-capital loss carryforwards aggregating $4,654,000, expiring between 2006 and 
2026, available to offset future taxable income and capital loss carryforwards of $252,000 which are available only to offset future capital 
gains for tax purposes and may be carried forward indefinitely.
 
At December 31, 2006, the Company has Mexican tax loss carryforwards aggregating $9,077,382, expiring between 2012 and 2016, avail-
able to offset future taxable income.

Contributed surplus

balance at december 31, 2004 $306,166 

stock options granted during the year         611,353 

stock options exercised during the year           (1,540)

balance at december 31, 2005         915,979 

stock options granted during the year       2,341,159 

stock options exercised during the year       (197,944)

balance at december 31, 2006 $3,059,194 

2006 2005 2004

statutory tax rates 34.12% 34.87% 35.60%

recovery of income taxes computed at statutory rates  $ 1,319,273  $    631,439  $    261,267 

non-deductible expenses     (804,815)     (215,930)         (4,116)

Lower effective tax rate on loss in foreign jurisdictions         (7,443)         (6,363)         (1,973)

Future tax benefits not recognized in the period that the loss arose     (507,015)     (409,146)     (255,178)

  $               -    $                -    $               -   

2006 2005

Canadian operating loss carryforwards  $   1,442,594  $   1,023,908 

Mexican operating loss carryforwards       2,632,441       1,669,599 

Canadian capital losses carried forward           39,125           41,649 

share issuance costs and other         131,638         192,478 

total future income tax assets       4,245,798       2,927,634 

Less valuation allowance    (1,528,129)    (1,130,648)

net future income tax assets       2,717,669       1,796,986 

Future income tax liability
excess of book value of mineral rights and deferred 
exploration costs over tax values    (2,717,669)    (1,796,986)

net future income tax assets  $                 -    $                  -   



7. MINERAL RIGHTS & DEFERRED EXPLORATION COSTS

              
 

  
Year ended December 31, 2006

Juanicipio Don Fippi Guigui Lagartos

 Sierra de 

Ramirez Adargas

Cinco de 

Mayo Sello Total

acquisition costs of 

mineral rights

   bal., beginning of year  $    919,458  $ 1,422,672  $ 1,571,172  $      39,629  $ 329,854  $ 289,387  $    285,936  $         -    $ 4,858,108 

   Incurred during year                 -                   -                   -          134,747     197,791     142,674        142,674     28,143        646,029 

   balance, end of year  $    919,458  $ 1,422,672  $ 1,571,172  $    174,376  $ 527,645  $ 432,061  $    428,610  $ 28,143  $ 5,504,137 

deferred exploration costs

   Camp costs  $        9,087  $    110,259  $           608  $      62,956  $     3,117  $          -    $      53,276  $         -    $    239,303 

   drilling                 -          280,584                 -       1,103,093              -                -          659,666             -       2,043,343 

   Geochemical               238          28,674                 -            56,070              -                -   57,520             -          142,502 

   Geological          79,538        326,220          13,110        227,574       29,970         1,455 160,039             -          837,906 

   Geophysical                 -              6,442          81,314          64,480            721              -   89,561             -          242,518 

   Gov’t fees and licenses            9,547          23,950            8,689        263,296       17,273         1,173 34,967             -          358,894 

   travel          13,725          34,052               410            6,321            838            986 10,413             -            66,745 

   transport and shipping                 -                   -                   -                   -                -                -                   -               -                    -   

   site administration            8,089          31,775            6,967          14,380         8,675         3,385 12,245             -            85,516 

       120,224        841,956        111,099     1,798,169       60,594         6,999 1,077,687             -       4,016,728 

   bal., beginning of year     2,026,094     1,240,889     1,265,194        399,192       88,536     307,779 135,787             -       5,463,471 

  $ 2,146,318  $ 2,082,845  $ 1,376,293  $ 2,197,361  $ 149,130  $ 314,778  $ 1,213,474  $         -    $ 9,480,199 

recoveries

   recoveries during year        (21,267)                 -                   -                   -                -                -                   -               -          (21,267)

balance, end of year  $ 2,125,051  $ 2,082,845  $ 1,376,293  $ 2,197,361  $ 149,130  $ 314,778  $ 1,213,474  $         -    $ 9,458,932 

deferred exploration costs

   Camp costs  $      10,855  $      63,793  $      12,865  $   16,009  $     2,630  $     2,672  $     9,637  $    118,461 

   drilling            5,521        119,296        243,972         4,056              -                -                -          372,845 

   Geochemical               650            2,228            3,724       21,728              -                -         10,039          38,369 

   Geological          43,462        166,045          59,028       66,586       11,820       19,382       72,605        438,928 

   Maps, fees and licenses        133,397          49,121          46,607       56,725       12,185         1,079       25,072        324,186 

   travel            6,217          18,989            5,332         3,108              -                -           1,182          34,829 

   transport and shipping            6,701            4,509               779         6,466              -                -                71          18,526 

   site administration          43,682          21,834          10,704         3,537            663         1,178         1,566          83,163 

       250,486        445,815        383,011     178,215       27,299       24,310     120,172     1,429,307 

   balance, beginning of year     1,775,609        795,074        882,183     220,977       61,238     283,468       15,615     4,034,164 

   balance, end of year  $ 2,026,095  $ 1,240,889  $ 1,265,194  $ 399,192  $   88,537  $ 307,778  $ 135,787  $ 5,463,471 

Year ended December 31, 2005

Juanicipio Don Fippi Guigui Lagartos

Sierra de 

Ramirez Adargas

Cinco de 

Mayo Total

acquisition costs of mineral rights

   balance, beginning of year  $    912,657  $    801,068  $    962,281  $   39,629  $ 171,175  $ 198,613  $ 191,127  $ 3,276,550 

   Incurred during year            6,801        621,604        608,891              -       158,679       90,774       94,810     1,581,558 

   balance, end of year  $    919,458  $ 1,422,672  $ 1,571,172  $   39,629  $ 329,854  $ 289,387  $ 285,937  $ 4,858,108 
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(a) Juanicipio property

The Company, through its subsidiary, Minera Los Lagartos, S.A. de C.V. (“Lagartos”), holds a 100% interest in an exploration concession 
on the Juanicipio property, located in the Fresnillo district, Zacatecas, Mexico. 

on april 4, 2005 the Company announced the signing of a binding letter of agreement for the establishment of an exploration Joint Venture 
covering its wholly-owned 7,679 hectare Juanicipio Property in Zacatecas, Mexico with Industrias Peñoles, S.A. de C.V. (“Peñoles”).  A 
formal agreement was later signed with an anniversary date of July 1, 2005.

the principal features of the agreement are:  

(i) Peñoles can earn a 56% interest in Juanicipio upon completion of a US$5,000,000 exploration program on or before the end of year 4 
of the agreement.  to december 31, 2006 peñoles has spent approximately us$3,360,000 and completed 18,320 metres of diamond 
drilling.

(ii)  Peñoles was obligated to incur exploration expenditures of at least US$750,000 in year one, including a minimum of 3,000 metres of 
diamond drilling and peñoles completed the obligation.

 
(iii)  A flexible and staged exploration program is included in the contract.  Exploration work will be supervised by a technical committee 

comprised of three representatives from Peñoles and two from MAG Silver.  Peñoles and MAG Silver are obliged to share their infor-
mation in the district.  Part of the geological and exploration work will be conducted by MAG consultants and in-house personnel.   

(iv)  Exploration results from Juanicipio will be published as appropriate on an ongoing basis, with both companies to agree on the content.

(v)  on signing of the agreement peñoles subscribed for a required us$500,000 private placement for a total of 621,577 shares of the 
Company at a price of C$0.967 per share.  Later, on March 2, 2006, peñoles subscribed for a second required us$500,000 private 
placement for a total of 245,716 MaG shares, at a price of C$2.35 per share.

(vi) Peñoles was obligated to incur further exploration expenditures of at least US$1,000,000 in year two and Peñoles has completed the obligation.

(b) Don Fippi property

Under the terms of a 2003 option agreement, the Company had the right to acquire a 100% interest in mining concessions located in the 
Batopilas, Chihuahua district of Mexico, subject to a royalty of 4.5% of the Net Smelter returns obtained from the property. Under the terms 
of the agreement the Company was required to incur exploration expenditures of US$4,000,000 to April 2008 (of which approximately 
US$590,000 was incurred) and make scheduled payments consisting of US$550,000 in cash (of which US$100,000 was paid) and 2,100,000 
common shares of the Company (of which 676,178 were issued).

In 2005, the Company negotiated a termination and sale agreement whereby the Company issued the underlying agreement holders a one 
time final payment of 750,000 common shares in exchange for a 100% interest in the property.  The purchase eliminated all remaining work 
commitments and the remaining payments of us$450,000 in cash and 673,822 in shares under the terms of the original option agreement. 
The property will remain subject to royalties and certain other terms of the original option agreement.  To December 31, 2006 the Company 
has incurred $2,082,845 in exploration costs on the property.

(c) guigui property

Under the terms of a 2003 option agreement, the Company had the right to acquire a 100% interest in mining concessions located in the 
Santa Eulalia (Guigui), Chihuahua district of Mexico, subject to a royalty of 2.5% of the Net Smelter returns obtained from the property. 
Under the terms of the agreement the Company was required to incur exploration expenditures of US$2,500,000 to April 2007 (of which 
approximately US$660,000 was incurred) and make scheduled payments consisting of US$550,000 in cash (of which US$100,000 was 
paid) and 2,100,000 common shares of the Company (of which 745,997 were issued).

In 2005, the Company negotiated a termination and sale agreement whereby the Company issued the underlying agreement holders a one 
time final payment of 750,000 common shares in exchange for a 100% interest in the property.  The purchase eliminated all remaining work 
commitments and the remaining payments of us$450,000 in cash and 604,003 in shares under the terms of the original option agreement. 
The property will remain subject to royalties and certain other terms of the original option agreement.  To December 31, 2006 the Company 
has incurred $1,376,293 in exploration costs on the property.



7. MINERAL RIGHTS & DEFERRED EXPLORATION COSTS
(Continued) 

(d) Lagartos property

The Company has acquired an exploration concession on mining claims (Lagartos) on the Fresnillo trend to the northwest and southeast 
of the Juanicipio property. this exploration concession enables the Company to explore the mining claim covered by the concession to 
december 2009, subject to the Company paying any applicable annual tax or other regulatory charges.

(e) Sierra Ramirez property

On December 14, 2003 the Company entered into an option agreement to acquire a 100% interest in certain mining concessions located in 
the Sierra Ramirez district in Durango, Mexico. Under the terms of the option agreement, the Company was obligated to:

(i) make scheduled payments totalling US$1,505,000 plus applicable value added tax (of which US$330,000 has been paid or accrued) by 
december 14, 2008; 

(ii) incur exploration expenditures totalling US$250,000 by July 26, 2009 (of which US$138,700 has been incurred to December 31, 
2006); and

(iii) issue a finder’s fee of 25,000 common shares of the Company in three tranches (of which all are now issued). 

during the period ended december 31, 2006, the Company and Minera rio tinto, s.a. de C.V. amended terms of the above referenced option 
agreement. Under the amended terms, the Company will issue Minera Rio Tinto, S.A. de C.V. 20,000 common shares of the Company (issued) and 
make scheduled cash payments totalling US$1,300,000 to December 14, 2010, with a final payment of US$650,000 of which up to US$500,000 
may be paid in the common shares of the Company.  Under the amended terms all exploration work commitments were also eliminated.

(f) adargas property

On February 14, 2004 the Company entered into an option agreement to acquire a 100% interest in the Adargas property (the “Adargas 
Property”), subject to a 2.5% net smelter returns royalty. Under the terms of the agreement, the Company was obligated to:

(i) make scheduled payments totalling US$1,000,000 plus applicable value added tax (of which US$225,000 has been paid) by July 26, 2009; 

(ii) issue 75,000 common shares of the Company (all have been issued); and

(iii) incur exploration expenditures totalling US$1,000,000 by July 26, 2009 (of which US$257,900 has been incurred to December 31, 2006). 

during the year ended december 31, 2005, the Company and Minera Cascabel, s.a. de C.V. amended terms of the above referenced option 
agreement. under the amended terms, half of each of the remaining property payments totalling us$775,000 due on or before July 26, 
2009, may be paid in shares at a deemed price per share equal to the average trading price of MaG for 30 calendar days prior to the date of 
payment. to that end MaG paid cash of us$62,500 and issued 30,840 shares (2005 - us$37,500 and issued 59,830 shares) for the property 
payment due July 26, 2006.
 
(g) Cinco de Mayo property

On February 26, 2004 the Company has entered into an option agreement acquire a 100% interest in the Cinco de Mayo property (the “Cinco 
de Mayo Property”), subject to a 2.5% net smelter returns royalty. Under the terms of the agreement, the Company was obligated to:

(i) make scheduled payments totalling US$1,000,000 plus applicable value added tax (of which US$225,000 has been paid) by July 26, 2009; 

(ii) issue 75,000 common shares of the Company (all have been issued); and

(iii) incur exploration expenditures totalling US$1,000,000 by July 26, 2009 (of which US$1,058,000 has been incurred to December 31, 2006).

during the year ended december 31, 2005, the Company and Minera Cascabel, s.a. de C.V. amended the terms of the above referenced 
option agreement. under the amended  terms, half of each of the remaining property payments totalling us$775,000 (us$225,000  paid) 
due on or before July 26, 2009, may be paid in shares at a deemed price per share equal to the average trading price of MaG for 30 calendar 
days prior to the date of payment. to that end MaG paid cash of us$62,500 and issued 30,840 shares (2005 - us$37,500 and issued 59,830 
shares) for the property payment due July 26, 2006. 
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8. SEGMENTED INFORMATION  
the Company operates in one segment being the exploration of mineral properties in Mexico. substantially all of the Company’s long term 
assets are located in Mexico and the Company’s executive and head office is located in Canada.

9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
For the year ended december 31, 2006 the Company’s president received $139,500 in compensation for management services (2005 
- $149,900).

For the year ended December 31, 2006 a company controlled by an officer of the Company received $113,520 in compensation for consult-
ing services (2005 - $125,950).

The Company is party to a Field Services Agreement, whereby it has contracted exploration services in Mexico with MINERA CASCABEL 
S.A. de C.V. (“Cascabel”) and IMDEX Inc. (“Imdex”).  As of January 2006, these companies have a common director with the Company.  
during the year ended december 31, 2006 the Company accrued or paid Cascabel and IMdeX consulting, administration and travel fees 
totaling $141,154 and exploration costs totaling $1,049,611 under the Field services agreement.

During the year ended December 31, 2003, the Company entered into an office services agreement with Platinum Group Metals Ltd. 
(“PTM”), a company with a common director and common officer. During the year ended December 31, 2006 the Company accrued or paid 
ptM $138,081 under the common service agreement (2005 - $133,329).

During the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company entered into an office lease agreement with Anthem Works Ltd. (“Anthem”), a 
company with a common director.  During the period ended December 31, 2006 the Company accrued or paid Anthem $62,333 under the 
office lease agreement (2005 - $62,333).

These transactions were incurred in the normal course of business and are measured at the exchange amount which was the consideration 
established and agreed to by the noted parties.

10. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
The Company’s minimum payments under its office lease agreement which was entered into during the year ended December 31, 2004, is 
as follows: 

11. AMOUNTS RECEIVABLE

 

2007             46,750 

2008                   -   

  $         46,750 

Dec. 31, 2006 Dec. 31, 2005

Goods and services tax recoverable  $          19,949  $          26,706 

Mexican value added tax (“IVA”) recoverable            251,919              75,499 

other                1,167                2,866 

  $        273,035  $        105,071 



12. DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CANADIAN AND UNITED 
STATES GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian GAAP, which differs in certain respects from US 
GAAP.  The material differences between Canadian and US GAAP affecting the Company’s financial statements are summarized as follows:

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Consolidated Statement of Operations and Deficit
   

               December 31

2006 2005

total assets under Canadian Gaap  $ 18,930,558  $ 18,075,406 

Cumulative amortization of mineral rights (a)        (601,000)        (601,000)

decrease in mineral properties due to expensing

of exploration costs (a)     (9,458,932)     (5,463,461)

total assets under us Gaap  $   8,870,626  $ 12,010,945 

total liabilities under Canadian and us Gaap  $      350,368  $      393,621 

shareholders’ equity under Canadian Gaap     18,580,190     17,681,785 

Cumulative amortization of mineral rights (a)        (601,000)        (601,000)

Cumulative mineral properties adjustment (a)     (9,458,932)     (5,463,471)

shareholders’ equity under us Gaap       8,520,258     11,617,314 

total liabilities and shareholders’ equity under us Gaap  $   8,870,626  $ 12,010,935 

Year ended
December 31,

2006

Year ended
December 31,

2005

Year ended
December 31,

2004

Cumulative 
amount from

April 21,
1999 to

December 31,
2006

net loss under Canadian Gaap $(3,866,567) $(1,810,838)  $  (733,897)  $  (7,664,818)

deferred exploration costs (a)  (3,995,461)   (1,429,307)  (1,976,622)  (9,458,932)

amortization of mineral rights (a) -   -   -    (601,000)

Compensation expense (b) -   -   -    (600,000)

stock-based compensation for employees and directors (b) -   482,659 -   482,659 

net loss under us Gaap $(7,862,028) $(2,757,486) $(2,710,519)  $(17,842,091)

basic and diluted loss per share under us Gaap  $        (0.21)  $        (0.10)  $        (0.11)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(a) exploration expenditures and costs of acquired mineral rights

Canadian GAAP allows exploration costs to be capitalized during the search for a commercially mineable body of ore.  Under US GAAP, 
exploration expenditures can only be deferred subsequent to the establishment of economically exploitable reserves.  For us Gaap pur-
poses the Company therefore expensed its exploration expenditures.

Previously, under US GAAP, the cost of acquisition of mineral property rights were generally classified as intangible assets and were 
amortized over their useful life, which in the case of a mineral right on a property without proven and probable reserves, was the lesser of the 
period to expiry of the right and the estimated period required to develop or further explore the mineral assets.  under Canadian Gaap, costs 
of acquiring mineral rights are generally considered as tangible property.  as a result, for us Gaap purposes, the Company had previously 
amortized the cost of the mining rights acquired in prior years on a straight line basis over the period that further exploration was expected to 
occur on the properties which varied from 15 months to 31 months.  In 2004 the Financial Accounting Standards Board in the U.S. concluded 
that mineral rights have the characteristics of tangible assets and issued eItF 04-02, Whether Mineral rights are tangible or Intangible 
Assets.  The effect of this new standard is that mineral rights are no longer required to be amortized to the extent they are considered tangible 
assets until such date as they are commercially exploited.  the Company adopted this standard effective January 1, 2004 on a prospective 
basis and is therefore no longer amortizing the cost of acquiring mineral property rights.

(b) accounting for stock-based compensation

On January 1, 2006, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment” 
(SFAS 123 (R)), which requires the recognition of compensation expense for all share-based payment awards. SFAS 123 (R) requires the 
Company to measure the cost of services received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the grant-date fair value of the 
award. The cost of such award will be recognized over the period during which services are provided in exchange for the award, generally 
the vesting period. The Company adopted SFAS 123 (R) using the modified prospective transition method. Under this method, compensa-
tion expense recognition provisions are applicable to new awards and to any awards modified, repurchased or cancelled after the adoption 
date. Additionally, for any unvested awards outstanding at the adoption date, compensation cost is recognized over the remaining service 
period. Forfeitures are estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those 
estimates. prior periods are not restated for comparative purposes.

during the year ended december 31, 2006, the Company recognized $2,341,159 in stock-based compensation expense or $0.01 per share. 

Cumulative

amount from

Year ended Year ended Year ended April 21, 1999 to

December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,

2006 2005 2004 2006

Operating activities

operating activities under Canadian Gaap  $  (1,827,348)  $    (447,244)  $ (1,091,957)  $  (4,412,163)

Write-off of deferred exploration costs (a)  (3,995,461)  (1,429,307)  (1,976,622) (9,458,932)

operating activities under us Gaap  $  (5,822,809)  $ (1,876,551)  $ (3,068,579)  $(13,871,095)

Investing activities

Investing activities under Canadian Gaap  $  (4,445,297)  $ (1,699,911)  $ (2,368,867)  $(11,647,623)

Reclassification of deferred exploration costs (a)         3,995,461 1,429,307 1,976,622 9,458,932 

Investing activities under us Gaap  $     (449,836)  $    (270,604)  $    (392,245)  $  (2,188,691)

Financing activity

Financing activity under Canadian and us Gaap  $     2,219,382  $    7,840,988  $       531,362  $  19,566,716 



12. DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CANADIAN AND UNITED 
STATES GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
(Continued)

The following weighted average assumptions were used in valuing stock options granted during the year:

prior to the adoption of sFas 123 (r), the Company recognized stock-based compensation using the intrinsic value method prescribed by 
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 (APB 25) “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” and applied the disclosure provisions 
of SFAS 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” as if the Company had applied the fair value method to measuring stock- based 
compensation expense. If the Company had accounted for stock-based compensation in accordance with the fair value method as prescribed 
by SFAS 123, net loss per share for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 would have been:    

(c) accounting for derivative instruments and hedging activities

In June 1998, the FASB issued SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, which standardizes the 
accounting for derivative instruments.  SFAS No. 133 is effective for all fiscal quarters of all fiscal years beginning after June 15, 1999.  The 
Company does not engage in hedging activities or invest in derivative instruments.  Therefore, adoption of SFAS No. 133 has no significant 
financial impact.

(d) Recent accounting pronouncements

In March 2004, the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) issued EITF 04-3, Mining Assets: Impairment and Business Combinations.  EITF 
04-3 requires mining companies to consider cash flows related to the economic value of mining assets (including mineral properties and 
rights) beyond those assets proven and probable reserves, as well as anticipated market price fluctuations, when assigning value in a business 
combination in accordance with SFAS 141 and when testing the mining assets for impairment in accordance with SFAS 144.  The consensus 
is effective for fiscal periods beginning after March 31, 2004. The adoption of EITF 04-3 did not have a material impact on the Company’s 
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

On March 30, 2005, the FASB ratified the consensus of the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) of the FASB Issue 04-6 that stripping costs 
incurred during the production phase of a mine are variable production costs that should be included in the costs of the inventory produced 
during the period that the stripping costs are incurred.  This consensus is effective for the first reporting period in fiscal years beginning after 
December 15, 2005, with early adoption permitted.  The consensus can be adopted either prospectively through a cumulative-effect adjust-
ment or retrospectively by restating prior period financial statements.  The Company will apply this consensus on its results of operations, 
financial position and cash flows if and when commercial production commences.

Dec. 31, 2006

risk-free interest rate 4.04

expected life of options 3.00

annualized volatility 85.92

dividend rate 0.00%

Year ended Year ended

December 31, December 31,

2005 2004

net loss, as originally reported  $(2,757,486)  $(2,710,519)

   adjustments:

       additional stock-based employee compensation expense

       under fair value based method for all awards  (482,659)                 -   

   net loss, adjusted  $(3,240,145)  $(2,710,519)

   basic and diluted net income per share, as reported  $         (0.10)  $         (0.11)

basic and diluted net loss per share, adjusted  $         (0.11)  $         (0.11)
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In September 2005, the EITF reached a consensus on Issue No. 04-13, Accounting for Purchases and Sales of Inventory with the Same 
Counterparty (EITF 04-13). The EITF concluded that entities that enter into inventory purchase and sales transactions with the same coun-
terparty, in contemplation of one another, should combine the transactions and treat them as non-monetary exchanges involving inventory. 
The consensus is effective for new inventory arrangements entered into, or modifications or renewals of existing inventory arrangements 
occurring, in interim or annual reporting periods beginning after March 15, 2006. the adoption of eItF 04-13 did not have any impact on 
the Company’s operating results or financial positions. 

In February 2006, the Fasb issued statement of Financial accounting standard no. 155, accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instru-
ment (SFAS 155), an amendment of SFAS 140 and SFAS 133. SFAS 155 permits the Company to elect to measure any hybrid financial 
instrument at fair value (with changes in fair value recognized in earnings) if the hybrid instrument contains an embedded derivative that 
would otherwise be required to be bifurcated and accounted for separately under SFAS 133. The election to measure the hybrid instrument 
at fair value is made on an instrument-by-instrument basis and is irreversible. This Statement will be effective for all instruments acquired, 
issued, or subject to a remeasurement event occurring after the beginning of the Company’s first fiscal year that begins after September 15, 
2006. The Company expects that the adoption of SFAS 155 will have no impact on its operating results or financial position.

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes” (FIN 48). This interpretation clarifies 
the recognition threshold and measurement of a tax position taken on a tax return, and requires expanded disclosure with respect to the 
uncertainty in income taxes. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The Company is currently evaluating 
the impact that adoption of FIN 48 will have on its financial condition or results of operations.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (SFAS 157). This 
statement defines fair value, establishes guidelines for measuring fair value and expands disclosures regarding fair value measurements. 
SFAS 157 does not require any new fair value measurements but rather eliminates inconsistencies in guidance found in various prior ac-
counting pronouncements.  SFAS 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company expects that adoption 
of SFAS 157 will not have a material effect on its financial condition or results of operation.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 158, “Employer’s Accounting for Defined Benefit 
Pension and Other Postretirement Plans - an amendment of FASB Statement No. 87, 88, 106 and 132R” (SFAS 158). This Statement requires 
an employer to recognize in its statement of financial position an asset of a plan’s over funded status or a liability for a plan’s under funded 
status, measure a plan’s assets and its obligations that determine its funded status as of the end of the employer’s fiscal year (with limited 
exceptions), and recognize changes in the funded status of a defined benefit postretirement plan in the year in which the changes occur. The 
Company expects that adoption of SFAS 158 will have no impact on its financial condition or results of operations.

In september 2006, the securities and exchange Commission (seC) issued staff accounting bulletin no. 108 (sab 108). sab 108 
provides guidance on the consideration of the effects of prior year misstatements in quantifying current year misstatements for the purpose 
of a materiality assessment. sab 108 permits existing public companies to record the cumulative effect of initially applying this approach in 
the fiscal year ending after November 15, 2006 by recording necessary correcting adjustments to the carrying values of assets and liabilities 
as of the beginning of that year with the offsetting adjustment recorded to the opening balance of retained earnings.  The Company expects 
that adoption of SAB 108 will not have a material impact on its financial condition and results of operations.

13. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
subsequent to december 31, 2006:

(a) The Company issued 247,500 common shares at $1.35 on the exercise of warrants for proceeds of $334,125; and issued 26,000 common 
shares at an average price of $0.84 on the exercise of options for proceeds of $21,760;

(b) on January 23, 2007 the Company granted 85,000 stock options to consultants of the Company at a price of $7.56 per share for a term 
of five years.

(c) on February 14, 2007 the Company closed a brokered private placement for 2,550,000 units at $7.25 a unit for gross proceeds of 
$18,487,500. Each unit is comprised of one common share and one-half of one common share purchase warrant, with each whole warrant 
exercisable for one common share at a price of $10.00 for a period of 12 months until February 14, 2008. The Company paid 6.0% cash 
commission to the underwriters on this placement aggregating $1,109,250. Legal costs and syndicate expenses have been estimated at 
$95,000 as an additional cost to the Company.

(d) On February 14, 2007 the Company closed a non-brokered private placement for 195,000 units, while a further 15,000 units were closed 
February 15, 2007 for a total of 210,000 at $7.25 a unit for gross proceeds of $1,522,500. each unit is comprised of one common share and 
one-half of one common share purchase warrant, with each whole warrant exercisable for one common share at a price of $10.00 for a period 
of 12 months until February 14 and 15, 2008. The Company paid a 6.0% finder’s fee on this placement comprised of $91,350 in cash.
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